
CABINET MEMBER FOR LIFELONG LEARNING, CULTURE AND LEISURE 
 
Venue: Town Hall,  

Moorgate Street, 
Rotherham. 

Date: Tuesday, 23rd January 2007. 

  Time: 9.00 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. LEA Governor Appointments  
  

 
4. Minutes of previous meeting held on 9th January, 2007 (Pages 1 - 3) 
 - to receive minutes 
 
5. Rawmarsh St. Mary's C of E School  
  

 
6. Rotherham Play Strategy 2007-2012 (Pages 4 - 53) 
 - to welcome and approve the Strategy 
 
7. Culture & Leisure Performance Report October-December, 2006 (Pages 54 - 

71) 
 - to receive the Performance Report 
 
The following item is likely to be considered in the absence of the press and 
public as being exempt under Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 (information relating to financial or business 

affairs of any particular person including the Council). 
 

 
8. Herringthorpe Playing Fields - Changing Pavilion (Pages 72 - 75) 
 - that Members agree to pursue Option 4 
 

 



 

 

LIFELONG LEARNING, CULTURE AND LEISURE 
9th January, 2007 

 
Present:- Councillor St. John (in the Chair); Councillors Austen, Littleboy and Barron 
 
101. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 12TH DECEMBER, 

2006  
 

 The minutes of the previous meeting held on 12th December, 2006 were 
agreed as a correct record. 
 

102. ROTHERHAM CULTURAL CONSORTIUM  
 

 The minutes of a meeting of the Rotherham Cultural Consortium held on 
6th December, 2006 were agreed as a correct record. 
 

103. CHRISTMAS CARNIVAL CO-ORDINATING GROUP  
 

 The minutes of the Christmas Carnival Co-ordinating Group held on 14th 
December, 2006 were received. 
 

104. MUSEUMS, GALLERIES & HERITAGE SERVICE:  PLANS FOR 
HERITAGE SITES  
 

 Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Culture and Leisure 
which gave an update on progress and plans for the heritage sites owned 
and/or cared for by the Council which are also the responsibility of the 
Museums, Galleries and Heritage Service. 
 
The sites for which the Service is responsible are:- 
 

• Clifton House (now Clifton Park Museum), including interpretation 
of the Roman Granary in Clifton Park and the Park’s origins as the 
Clifton Estate 

• Boston Castle, including interpretation of architectural salvage 
designed for open display in Boston Park (e.g. Doorway from 
College of Jesus) 

• Waterloo Pottery Kiln, including interpretation of Pottery Ponds as 
the location of the Swinton (Rockingham) Pottery Works 

• The Walker Mausoleum, including interpretation of Masbrough 
Chapel and Burial Ground 

• Keppel’s Column 
• Catcliffe Glass Cone 

 
The report provided an introductory statement which explained what this 
responsibility comprised of, partners whom the Service worked with, and 
examples of projects which had been completed to date.  The report 
subsequently gave details of both current and future issues relating to 
each individual site. 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



 

 
 
 
 
 
The external organisations which had been closely associated with the 
sites are: 
 

� English Heritage 
� Heritage Lottery Fund 

 
Resolved:-  That the individual reports about the Service be received, and 
the following recommendations be approved: 
 

o To develop a new gallery at Clifton Park Museum about the South 
Yorkshire Glass Industry 

o To re-investigate the option of restoring Boston Castle separately 
from the redevelopment of Boston Park 

o To commission a Condition Survey of the Waterloo Kiln in 2007-08 
o To investigate funding opportunities for the Walker Mausoleum and 
the adjacent burial ground of Masbrough Chapel, with a view to 
preparing funding applications in 2007-08 

o To identify problems with the proposals to restore and reopen 
Keppel’s Column, and to arrange remedial works for early 2007 

o To develop a project for Catcliffe Glass Cone, with a view to 
submitting funding applications in mid 2007. 

 
105. THORPE HESLEY COMMUNITY LIBRARY  

 
 Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Culture and Leisure 

which informed that the Holy Trinity Church in Thorpe Hesley has been 
successful in raising funds for a new Community Centre in the village. 
 
As part of the fund-raising the Church won a competition which provided 
sufficient additional funds to adapt the current planned building to include 
a library space. 
 
The creation of a library at Thorpe Hesley will contribute to the library 
service meeting public library service standards and, in turn, would impact 
on the Council’s performance indicators and CPA achievements. 
 
Work on the Church owned building is due to begin in the near future, with 
completion in 2007-08. 
 
The need for a library at Thorpe Hesley was identified through a Strategic 
review of Community libraries and bids for revenue and capital funding 
have been submitted. 
 
The cost of the capital work required is £50,000.   
 

Page 2



 

 

This reduces the RMBC contribution to establish a new library at Thorpe 
Hesley by £229,000 and, subject to appropriate authorisations, will allow 
other recommendations of the review to be implemented.   Clearly this is 
excellent value for money for the Council. 
 
A BIP for annual revenue costs of £50,000 has been submitted and is 
being considered as part of the budget setting process for 2007-2008. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the implementation of a library space within the 
building is supported.  
 
(2)  That it be noted that a report containing details of a single site bid to 
the Big Lottery Fund, together with options for suitable sites to build a 
further library in Rotherham, is to be submitted to a future meeting.  
 

 
(THE CHAIRMAN AUTHORISED CONSIDERATION OF THE FOLLOWING ITEM 
IN ORDER TO PROCESS THE MATTER REFERRED TO WITHOUT FURTHER 
DELAY)  
  
106. REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT AS AT NOVEMBER, 2006  

 
 Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director of Finance 

which provided details of expenditure, income and the net budget position 
for Culture and Leisure Services compared to the phased budgets for the 
period ending on 30th November, 2006 and the projected year end outturn 
position. 
 
It is anticipated at this point that projected expenditure will be within the 
approved budget by the end of the financial year, although there remains 
a number of pressures which are being monitored closely. 
 
These pressures are in respect of increased energy charges from 
suppliers.  The service is estimating an additional cost of £215,000 for the 
year within Leisure facilities and Libraries due to increased charges.  
Further work is being undertaken with EDS to verify this projection. 
 
Resolved:-  That the current forecast outturn position based on actual 
costs and income to 30th November, 2006 and forecast costs and income 
to 31st March, 2007 be noted. 
 

 

Page 3



 

 

 
 
1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member for Lifelong Learning, Culture & 

Leisure 
2.  Date: 23rd January 2007 

3.  Title: Rotherham Play Strategy 2007 - 2012 

4.  Programme Area: Environment and Development Services 

 
 
5. Summary 
 
The Rotherham Play Strategy has been developed by a partnership of organisations 
led by Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council in response to an invitation from the 
Big Lottery Fund and linked with a funding allocation of £655,841.14. The funding is 
dependent on the strategy being in place before the application is processed and 
there are tight deadlines linked with the application. 
 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
That the Rotherham Play Strategy 2007 – 2012 is welcomed and approved. 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 6Page 4



 

 

7. Proposals and Details 
 
A partnership of organisations led by Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council has 
developed Rotherham’s first Play Strategy. The draft has been circulated to 
partnership members and subsequently to Joint Leaders Team in the Children and 
Young People’s Service. Formal approval of the document is now needed in order to 
proceed with the funding application to the Big Lottery Fund. The strategy will inform 
this application. 
 
 
8. Finance 
 
A small budget of up to £3,000.00 is in place to allow the publication of this strategy. 
No other costs beyond core costs have implications on the production of this 
strategy. It is envisaged that implementation of the Strategy’s key priorities will be 
achieved in the first instance from the provisional allocation of £655,841.14 to 
Rotherham from the Big Lottery Fund’s Children’s Play Programme. Other sources 
of funding, both internal and external, will be sought in due course to continue the 
implementation of the remainder of the Strategy. 
 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
If there is a delay in the strategy and application process then it will be submitted in 
September (the final submission date) instead of March. 
 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
Rotherham Learning –children and young people learn through play.  
Rotherham Achieving – income will be brought into the borough to benefit play 
through this strategy and linked Big Lottery Fund funding. 
Rotherham Alive – children and young people’s play stimulates creative activity. 
 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 
Planning for Play guidance from Play England 
Children’s Play programme – Big Lottery Fund  
 
 
Contact Name :  Nick Barnes 
   Principal Project Development Officer  

Extension:  3669 
Email:  nick.barnes@rotherham.gov.uk 

 

Page 5



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Rotherham Play 
Strategy 2007 - 2012 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Play is … ‘what children and young people do when they 
follow their own ideas and interests in their own way and 

for their own reasons’. Getting Serious About Play 

Page 6



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

 
 
 
What is Play?        Inner Cover 
“Play is freely chosen, personally directed, intrinsically motivated behaviour 
that actively engages the child. Play can be fun or serious. Through play 
children explore social, material and imaginary worlds and their relationship 
with them, elaborating all the while a flexible range of responses to the 
challenges they encounter. By playing, children learn and develop as 
individuals, and as members of the community". ‘Best Play – what play 
provision should do for children’. Bob Hughes and Frank King. 
 
 
 
 
“Play is a time where you enjoy yourself” – Sarah 
 

“Play is what I do, anywhere, with anyone and it can be anything” – 
Molly 
 

“Play means to do something that is fun and interesting to me” – 
Amelia 
 

“Play is the freedom to do what I wish” – Tess 
 

“Playing is when you are having fun” – Tammy 
Comments from 42nd Rotherham Guide Unit 

 
 
 
 
“We don't stop playing because we grow old; we grow old because we stop 
playing”. 

George Bernard Shaw 
 
 
 
 
The Right to Play   
The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child, ratified by the UK 
Government in December 1991, recognises the importance of play for the 

Page 7



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

child.  This definition includes young people up to the age of 19. Article 31 of 
the Convention states that: 

1. Parties recognise the right of the child to rest and leisure, to engage in 
play and recreational activities appropriate to the age of the child 
and to participate freely in cultural life and the arts.  

 
2. Parties shall respect and promote the right of the child to participate 

fully in cultural and artistic life and shall encourage the provision of 
appropriate and equal opportunities for cultural, artistic, recreational 
and leisure activity.  

Article 31 Convention on the Rights of the Child  
 
Index 
 
          
 page 
Welcome          4  
Introduction          4  
Why We Need a Strategy        5
  

Scope          6
  
 Rotherham Play Partnership       7
   
Defining Play           7
  

Risk          8  
The Benefits of Play         9
  
 Health         
 9 
 Communities        
 10 
The Strategic Context        11 

The National Context       11 
The Local Context        13 
The Local Development Framework      16 

Evidence of Need         16 
Rotherham Borough       

 16 
Deprivation         17 

Page 8



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

Disability         17 
 Barriers to Play        18 

Equalities and Inclusion       18 
Public Perceptions of Young People       19

  
Play Facilities and Play Service Providers      19
  

Fixed Play Provision        20 
 Playwork         21 
 Access to Play         21 
 Conclusions         22 
Monitoring & Evaluation        22 
Play Strategy Action Plan          23
  
Appendices          28  

Appendix 1 Definitions       28  
Appendix 2 The Play Partnership, Audit and Consultation   29 
Appendix 3 Map: Areas of Deprivation in Rotherham   38

  
Appendix 4 References       39  
Appendix 5 Contacts       40  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Welcome  
Iain St John…. 
Councillor Iain St John is the elected member of Rotherham MB Council and 
cabinet member for Life Long Learning, Culture and Leisure and is the play 
champion for Rotherham. 
 
 
Introduction 
This strategy aims to address the different elements that are needed to make 
up effective and co-ordinated play provision within Rotherham*. [*Where 
‘Rotherham’ is mentioned, this means ‘Rotherham Borough’.] It recognises 
the value of play in its own right and in relation to wider agendas such as 
health, social inclusion and community safety whilst reflecting local diversity 
and character. It considers where children and young people play for 

Page 9



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

example indoors, in parks, open spaces, streets and the wider built 
environment, and their ability to access play in their neighbourhoods. It 
recommends local standards for play provision (as relevant), identifies links 
with strategic documents and interprets the ‘local situation’ in the context of 
relevant regional and national legislation, policy and strategy. The 
assessment of current provision is based on an audit and analysis of existing 
facilities and services and extensive consultation with stakeholders, children 
and young people. 
 
Our Vision: 
 
We see Rotherham as a place where all children and young people have 
equal access to high quality, challenging play opportunities which are close 
to where they live and either free of charge or affordable.  
 
It is recognised that not all provision can be free of charge, though the 
intention is that the great majority of play facilities will be free. Affordability 
and opportunities to introduce incentive schemes must therefore be 
considered when providing play opportunities. All children and young 
people have a right to play and access to opportunities to play, regardless of 
their background or abilities. The aim of this strategy is therefore:  
 
To improve and extend opportunities to play for all children and young 
people in Rotherham Borough. 
 
 
To achieve this aim, the following priorities have been agreed: 
 
1.  To raise awareness of the value and significance of play for children 

and young people and to promote better understanding of the role of 
play in their personal development. 

 
2.  To provide a targeted range of challenging and exciting outdoor play 

spaces for children and young people.  
 
3.  To support and maintain a strong and effective play partnership 

representing all sectors of the community which will co-ordinate and 
enable good quality, sustainable play.  

 
4.  To recognise and value the range of workers who deliver play 

opportunities across all sectors, to share good practice and to increase 
the number of qualified playworkers in Rotherham. 

 

Page 10



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

5.  To involve children and young people in the planning, design, delivery 
and feedback on the management of future play facilities. 

 
6.  To identify and remove barriers preventing children and young people 

from accessing play opportunities.  
 
In the delivery of this programme, the principles of value for money and 
sustainability will guide activity. 
 
Why We Need a Strategy 

Access to rich, stimulating environments - There is a poverty of 
play opportunities in the general environment, and it is the 
responsibility of the community to ensure that all children have 
access to rich, stimulating environments that are free from 
unacceptable risk, and thereby offer children the opportunity to 
explore both themselves and the world, through their freely 
chosen play.  

Best Play: What play provision should do for children (2000) 
 
Play is a central part of the lives of children and young people. It is 
fundamental to their health and well being, to their relationships, 
development and learning. Through exploration and experimentation play 
provides children and young people with a way to learn how to live in and 
experience the world. If children and young people, are to benefit from the 
variety of play opportunities, there must be a more strategic approach to 
provision, led by a cohesive national and local policy offering coordinated 
guidance, standards and direction linked with  clear local strategic direction. 
The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (1989) identifies 
their right to engage in play and recreational activities, rest and leisure as 
appropriate to their age and to participate freely in cultural life and the arts. 
Children and young people, their parents/carers and communities, social 
commentators and elected members all regard play provision as important. 
Currently however, play provision fails to be co-ordinated successfully for a 
number of reasons. Responsibility falls between many different providers and 
is as a result fragmented. There has been no single activity co-ordinator and 
the profile of play is not as high as it should be. These different threads need 
to be drawn together and coordinated. A lasting partnership ensuring that 
play is placed high on the agenda of providers and stakeholders is required. 
This strategy identifies actions over a five year period from 2007 to 2012. 
Regular monitoring and review will correct deviations and inform future 
direction. There will also be a full review and appraisal every five years. 
 

Page 11



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

In order to identify the barriers to play and the needs of children and young 
people in terms of play provision, a range of consultation has been carried 
out. Actions are directly identified within the enclosed action plan. 
Consultation to confirm direction will continue throughout the 
implementation phase. The ongoing results of this consultation with children 
and young people will inform the play partnership. This large partnership of 
play providers has directly contributed to the identification of key issues and 
this also informs the document. In order to build up an impression of current 
provision, a full audit of play in Rotherham has been carried out, and this 
enables gaps to be identified and issues of quality to be addressed. 
 
The Big Lottery Fund has allocated a sum of money (£655,841.14) to 
Rotherham for the development of play activity. The priorities in this 
document identify how this funding should be targeted. 
 
Scope 

‘Inclusive provision is open and accessible to all, and takes positive 
action in removing disabling barriers so that disabled and non-
disabled children can participate’.  

Alison John for Kidsactive and Better Play 
 
The Rotherham Children and Young People’s Play Strategy addresses the 
play needs of children and young people in Rotherham up to 19 years of 
age. While the needs of young people are different from those of children, 
they are no less important. It aims to be inclusive and covers: 

• fixed play facilities (playgrounds, outdoor youth facilities, wheeled 
sports facilities and covering their sustainable development and use, 
from all aspects of their design, specification, installation and 
subsequent management and maintenance, through to their eventual 
removal and replacement –facilities are owned / managed by the 
local authority, parish / town councils and others)  

• other spaces (green spaces, playing pitches, woodlands, river 
corridors, lakes etc) 

• staffed services (supervised play facilities, out of school clubs, junior 
youth clubs, uniformed groups, play schemes, ranger assisted activities 
etc.) 

 
We recognise that children and young people’s play occurs spontaneously 
across the borough and particularly in the range of open and green spaces 
irrespective of the presence of play equipment. These sites are highly 
important in delivering play value though this value may not initially be 
apparent. Examples may include copses and woods, mounds and other 
landscape features, paths and steps, bridges and boulders. Therefore in 

Page 12



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

designing and undertaking changes to any open space area, consideration 
of the play value of these elements will be taken into account. 
 
Rotherham Play Partnership  
The Play Partnership was established to promote play in its broadest sense in 
Rotherham. It has sought to involve all stakeholders who deliver play 
throughout the Borough. The partnership is therefore comprised of 
representative groups, both statutory and non statutory, from the public, 
voluntary and private sectors. It is led by Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 
Council.  
 
Defining Play  

“Playing is when you are having fun” 
 Tammy - 42nd Rotherham Guide Unit 

  
The definition of play can be interpreted in many different ways dependant 
upon the field of practice it is delivered in; however in Rotherham, for the 
purposes of this document, we have agreed the following definition: 
 
Play is freely chosen, personally directed behaviour, motivated from within. 

 
Freely chosen means that children themselves choose when, how and what 
to play.  As such it is not part of a set programme and does not have any 
steps that need to be completed. 
 
Personally directed means children themselves decide the rules and roles 
they take within their play. 
 
Play includes activities such as running, jumping, climbing, laughing, shouting, 
singing, skipping, hiding, hopping, crawling, walking, dancing, play acting, 
pretence and imagination. It can have the effect of strengthening 
friendships and generating happiness. 
 
Rotherham believes that play is central to the lives of children and young 
people.  Play is the primary way that they make sense of themselves, their 
abilities and the world and people around them.  
 
For very young children and their families play includes a lot of adult 
interaction and this is delivered by a range of providers, for example the 
library service with clubs such as the Pattercake Club and the Chatterbox 
Group. Play is therefore very important, even from a very early age, as it 
gives the opportunity for children and young people to experiment and take 

Page 13



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

calculated risks, which will enable them to develop important social and life 
skills. Play can be challenging, exciting, stimulating, serious, fun and even 
scary at times, but it is widely recognised as the method that children and 
young people use to learn and develop autonomously as individuals and 
members of the community. Given the right play opportunities, children and 
young people will have a happier and healthier life.  The `Play Place Grid’ 
from Play England (below) gives examples of the types of facility and space 
which can offer children and young people the best opportunities for play 
and informal recreation and which should form the basis of provision where 
children and young people can play and meet their friends in their own 
neighbourhoods.  
 

The Play Place 
grid 

Supervised and semi-
supervised - for example 

No formal supervision - 
for example 

Dedicated 
places for 
play and 
informal 

recreation* 

• Adventure playgrounds 
• Open access play centres 
• Play ranger and outreach 
play projects 

• Mobile play facilities 
• School playgrounds and 
premises (open out of 
schools hours) 

• Playgrounds / play areas 
• Bike, skate and skateboard 
facilities 

• Ball courts 
• Multi Use Games Areas 
• Hangout / youth shelters 

 

Other 
provision 

where play 
takes place 

 

• School playgrounds and 
premises during the school 
day 

• Extended school and 
childcare provision  

• Children’s Centres 

 

Non-
dedicated 
places for 
play and 
informal 

recreation 
 

• Parks with rangers and 
gardeners 

• Streets with wardens 
 

• Residential streets 
• Neighbourhood open 
spaces 

• Parks and green spaces 
• Beaches, rivers and lakes 
• Woodlands and natural 
open spaces 

• Safe routes to school and 
play areas 

• Playing fields and recreation 
grounds 

* Places for children and young people, where they are free to come 
and go and free to choose what they do whilst there and which they 
can use free of charge. (There may be some exceptions to the ‘free 
to come and go’ criteria for young children and for children who 
have specific needs which make independent mobility impossible for 
them.) 

Source: Play 
England 

 

Page 14



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

Other more specialist forms of play include play therapy which helps children 
understand muddled feelings and upsetting events that they haven't 
the chance or skills to sort out properly.  Rather than having to explain what is 
troubling them, as adult therapy usually expects, children use play to 
communicate at their own level and at their own pace, without feeling 
interrogated or threatened. This type of activity is acknowledged but is 
beyond the focus of this strategy. 
 

Risk 
‘Children need and want to take risks when they play. Play 
provision aims to respond to these needs and wishes by offering 
children stimulating, challenging environments for exploring their 
abilities. In doing this, play provision aims to manage the level of 
risk so that children are not exposed to unacceptable risk of death 
or serious injury.’ 
Managing Risk in Play Provision Statement (2002) Play Safety Forum 

 
It is recognised that perceptions of ‘risk’ have been a limiting factor in the 
quality of some play provision and that over 40% of the funding for play 
grounds is spent on measures to mitigate against risk. This level of spend is not 
a requirement of the Health and Safety Executive. Managing risk is about 
keeping the risk as low as practicable; it is not about its total removal. Play 
without risk removes enjoyment and challenge and results in play provision 
which is less stimulating and consequently may be avoided. Safety surfacing 
is an example which doubles the cost of a play ground without evidence 
that it significantly reduces serious injury. Whilst this is out of proportion to the 
level of risk involved, in the short term it is difficult to reduce the level of 
treatment. Nationally however there is pressure growing to recognise that too 
much is being targeted towards safety provision in play grounds. 
 
 
The Benefits of Play 
Play is to a child what work is to an adult: It is what they do. Play provides the 
mechanism for children to explore the world around them and the medium 
through which skills are developed and practised. Through play children 
learn about their world and the things in it. It is an essential part of every 
child's life and vital to the process of human development. Play allows them 
the chance to explore their environment, to learn how it works and how they 
relate to it. It is essential for physical, emotional and spiritual growth, good 
health, intellectual and educational development, and acquiring social and 
behavioural skills. Children can express feelings and emotions through various 
types of play activities (play, art, stories, etc.) far earlier than they can express 
them in words. For older children, play may be the outlet through which they 

Page 15



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

convey emotions that they are either unwilling to share verbally or do not 
have the sufficient vocabulary to express. Through play children can be 
anyone, at anyplace, at anytime. 
 
Health 
Play is crucial to children and young people’s health and development and 
has an important role in addressing concerns about increases in obesity and 
mental health. National evidence (Children’s Play Council) suggests one of 
the best ways for children to get exercise is through outdoor play. The British 
Heart Foundation says a third of Under 7s fail to reach minimum 
recommended activity levels and by the age of 15, two-thirds of girls are 
classified as inactive. Two-thirds of 9 - 11 years olds in the UK are dissatisfied 
with the quality of outdoor play facilities where they live. This is even higher 
for 15 – 16 year olds (81%), which is higher than any other European country. 
In making recommendations to combat obesity, the Department for Health 
recommends that children and young people achieve at least sixty minutes 
of moderate intensity physical activity each day (Department for Health 
2004). However, research shows that only a third of boys and girls aged 2-11 
achieve the recommended level of activity to benefit their health. Research 
has shown that outdoor play is one of the best forms of exercise for children. 
Regular participation in active recreation has proven health benefits 
including in later life the reduced risk of coronary heart disease, strokes and 
osteoporosis, as well as obesity reduction and weight management, and 
psychological benefits including increased self-esteem and a feeling of well-
being. 
 

 ‘Play in young children may have a critical role in the enlargement 
of brain capacity.’ 

Best Play 
Positive sport and leisure activities in communities comprise one of the 
resilience factors for promoting children and young people's mental health 
listed in the report ‘Bright Futures- Promoting Children and Young People's 
Mental Health’ (1999) the Mental Health Foundation. 
 
Communities 
As well as the health and well-being benefits that play can bring to 
individuals, play can also make a significant contribution to wider community 
cohesion and social inclusion agendas, which are being taken forward by 
partners in Rotherham. 
 
The Council’s Social Inclusion Framework aims to ensure that all of 
Rotherham’s communities and individuals are encouraged and enabled to 
participate effectively in and benefit from all aspects of life; while 

Page 16



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

Rotherham’s Community Cohesion Partnership Strategic Framework for 
Action sets out actions to ensure that Rotherham is a place of: 
 

• Belonging - where all people feel they can belong and have a part to 
play. 

• Safety - where all people are safe and treated with dignity. 
• Equity - where equality of opportunity is the norm. 
• Understanding - where differences between people are understood 

and valued. 
• Celebration - where the richness of our diversity and commonality is 

enjoyed. 
 
Play provides informal opportunities for children and young people from 
diverse communities to come together, build cross-community friendships 
and a sense of belonging, as well as gaining an understanding of each 
other’s backgrounds. 
 
As part of the wider neighbourhoods’ agenda, it is important, therefore, that 
children and young people are provided with safe areas to play. New 
housing developments and regeneration schemes need to consider the play 
needs of children and young people. Consideration also needs to be given 
to the potential for anti-social behaviour that can be linked to some types of 
play, or play in inappropriate places.  
 
However, it needs to be recognised that play can act as a diversion from 
anti-social behaviour, while an absence of play facilities can underpin the 
concerns that residents express about ‘gangs hanging around the streets’ (as 
identified in the Quality  of Life survey 2006).  
 
 
The Strategic Context 
The following policy and guidance at the national and local level, impacts 
directly on play in Rotherham.  
 
The National Context 
Play has gradually risen up the political agenda over the last five years. When 
the current government came to power there was a commitment of 
£200,000,000 to go towards children’s play but it was not determined at that 
time how this would be made available.  In 2004 the government published 
‘Getting Serious About Play’ which made recommendations about how local 
authorities should be thinking about play. More recently the Big Lottery Fund 
announced a programme of funding which included an allocation of 

Page 17



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

£155,000,000 to local authorities in England for play. Of this fund Rotherham 
has been allocated £655,841.14.  
 
The following policy and guidance influences the Play Strategy:  
 
The Children Act 2004 provides the legal underpinning for the Every Child 
Matters: Change for Children programme which is aimed at transforming 
children's services. It states that enjoying recreation should be one of the 
outcomes that children’s services aim to bring about. The Every Child Matters 
agenda aims to give every child the opportunity to achieve their full 
potential regardless of their background or circumstances. Services from 
across local authorities, health agencies, schools, police and voluntary 
groups all play a vital role. The outcomes framework recognises how 
important the enjoyment of time and space for play are for children and 
young people. 
 
The Play Strategy contributes to each of the five outcomes for children and 
young people that form the core of Every Child Matters, namely:  
 

• being healthy 
• staying safe 
• enjoying and achieving  
• making a positive contribution  
• achieving economic well-being 
 

The play strategy will therefore make a significant contribution to the 
Government’s Every Child Matters agenda. In Rotherham this agenda is led 
by the Children And Young People’s Service. 
 
Getting Serious About Play is a government policy document, published in 
2004 by Frank Dobson MP announcing significant new investment in play, 
later confirmed to be the national allocation discussed above. The key 
recommendations were that local authorities should have the following in 
place: 
 

• A play strategy and plan 
• A governance structure 
• A local play champion 

 
Best Play: What play provision should do for children (2000) is the result of a 
partnership between the National Playing Fields Association, PLAYLINK and 
the Children’s Play Council and was funded by the Department for Culture, 
Media and Sport. It addresses how children benefit from play opportunities 

Page 18



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

and how play services and spaces can provide these benefits. It applies 
research to the field of public play provision, both supervised and 
unsupervised and is based on values and principles about children and play 
developed by the playwork profession.  
 
Cleaner Safer Greener is the Government’s vision to create cleaner, safer, 
greener communities for all. It has been shown that safe, well-maintained 
and attractive public spaces create pride in the places where people live 
which is essential to building community cohesion and successful 
communities. An aspect of the creating sustainable communities agenda 
targets improving the quality of planning, design, management and 
maintenance of public spaces and the built environment. High quality and 
inclusive design should create public spaces that bring people together and 
provide opportunities for physical activity and recreation.  
 
The Play Strategy clearly contributes to this process directly through provision 
of quality play spaces. The Green Spaces Strategy which is currently being 
developed also has clear links with both this vision and the Play Strategy. 
 
National Healthy Schools Programme (NHSP) includes the following aims: 
 

• to support 
children and young people in developing healthy behaviours;  

• to help to reduce health inequalities; and  
• to help promote social inclusion.  

 
National Healthy School status requires that schools meet criteria outlined in 
four core themes which cover a range of educational, health and 
environmental issues that can be effectively addressed through the whole 
school community. Two of the four core themes are: 
 

• Physical Activity  
• Emotional Health and Well Being (including Bullying) 

 
Youth Matters (2005) outlines the government’s plans for transforming services 
to young people in their teenage years.  The paper outlines the need to 
provide comprehensive and join-up services around: 
 

• Positive Activities 
• Targeted Support 
• Information, Advice and Guidance 

 

Page 19



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

Central to the development of services to the teenage years will be a local 
Youth Offer which will inform children and young people of the opportunities 
available to them. Play opportunities will be an important part of the Offer, 
providing recreational and social experiences in a safe and enjoyable place.  
 
The Play Strategy will clearly contribute to this agenda by helping to build a 
range of positive play experiences, both generic and targeted. 

 
The Local Context 
Rotherham’s Play Strategy is part of a wider set of policies and strategies, 
which provide a vision that promotes social, environmental and economic 
wellbeing in the Borough. 
 
The most important of these is Rotherham’s Community Strategy, which sets 
out a long-term strategy for the Borough, and acts as a focus for all other 
plans and strategies. 
 
To ensure that the Play Strategy adds value to and complements the 
Community Strategy, the Action Plan has been aligned to the five Priority 
Themes contained in the Community Strategy.  These are: 
 

• Achieving 
• Alive 
• Learning 
• Proud 
• Safe 

 
There are also two cross cutting themes, which underpin the actions in the 
Action Plan: 

• Sustainable Development 
• Fairness 

 
The Play Strategy contributes to all of the key Community Strategy priorities, 
but particularly: 
 

• Alive – healthy children and young people  
• Achieving – play enhances the motivation of children and young 

people  
• Learning – children and young people learn by experience and 

interaction with others 
 
The Play Strategy also contributes to the delivery of Rotherham’s Local Area 
Agreement (LAA).  The LAA is a three year agreement that partner agencies 

Page 20



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

in Rotherham agreed with Central Government in March 2006. The aim of the 
LAA is to improve partnership working in Rotherham and improve services. It 
complements the Community Strategy, and is based on five blocks. Each of 
the LAA blocks makes a contribution to one or more themes in our 
Community Strategy: 
 

• The Economic Development and Enterprise Block helps deliver our 
Achieving and Learning themes 

• The Children and Young People’s Block is makes a contribution to all 
themes, but particularly Achieving, Learning and Alive 

• The Safer and Stronger Communities Block contributes to our Safe 
theme 

• The Healthy Communities and Older People’s Block is making a 
contribution to deliver our Alive theme 

• The Cross Cutting Block contribute to the Proud theme and cross-
cutting themes of Fairness and Sustainable Development 

 
The LAA provides for new opportunities for partnerships focussed on delivery. 
Many of the objectives in the LAA promote health, but a key health objective 
is to reduce health inequalities in target areas and communities of interest, 
and identity and promote positive health and wellbeing for all residents. The 
Play Strategy makes a contribution to the key LAA priorities, such as: 
 

• The children and young people block through achieving, learning and 
alive 

 
Rotherham’s Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy (NRS) is integral to the 
delivery of the Community Strategy and the LAA. It sets Rotherham 
Partnership’s commitment to tackling the inequalities that exist between 
those communities that experience most deprivation and the rest in the 
Borough, as well as a commitment to improve the quality of life in all of 
Rotherham’s neighbourhoods.  
 
The key objectives of the NRS are to: 
 

• Deliver the Community Strategy vision for Rotherham by addressing 
inequalities, through specific actions with communities of place and 
interest in most need and building preventative strategies that will 
deliver longer-term solutions rather than simply tackling current 
problems 

• Address the root causes of deprivation by ensuring actions in target 
communities help us make progress across all the Community Strategy 
Priority Themes 

Page 21



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

• Ensure our resources and service delivery are aligned with community 
needs across target communities by: 

 
1. Driving forward service integration at neighbourhood level 

through the development and rollout of a neighbourhood 
management approach. 

2. Prioritising the active involvement and influence of communities 
and putting community needs and aspirations at the heart of 
neighbourhood renewal. 

3. Ensuring effective mainstreaming of neighbourhood renewal in 
the plans and programmes of partner organisations. 

4. Maximising the use of external resources, and aligning these 
resources to the mainstream, to support the transformation of 
deprived areas. 

5. Improve our information by improving both data sharing and 
listening more to communities 

 
The NRS targets the top 25% most deprived areas, as well as four communities 
of interest. Importantly, in terms of the Play Strategy, the communities of 
interest include Deprived Children and Young People.  Analysis shows that 
this community is especially disadvantaged in terms of attainment and skills 
levels, income, health, housing and crime. 
 
Other cross cutting strategies that are relevant to the Play Strategy include: 
 

• RMBC’s Voice and Influence Strategy which sets out how the voice of 
children and young people will be central to the life of the borough 
and how they will have real influence over decisions which affect their 
lives. 

• RMBC’s Rural Strategy, which addresses service delivery in the rural half 
of the Borough 

• the Social Inclusion Framework & Action Plan, which aims to promote a 
joined up, effective approach to social inclusion across partners, and 
address gaps in service provision 

• the Children & Young People’s Plan and Well-Being Strategy 2006-2009 
makes clear links with the above strategies and covers services for 
children and young people 0-19, those aged 20 or over who are 
leaving care and those up to 25 who have learning difficulties. 
Rotherham has adopted a number of core principals including 
championing children and young people’s rights and responsibilities 
and recognising and celebrating equality and diversity. 

• the Community Safety Strategy for 2005 – 2008 is a joint strategy to 
address crime, disorder and drug problems. The Strategy also 

Page 22



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

contributes to targets in the Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy 2004 – 
2010. Community Cohesion is a cross-cutting theme. 

• Future Perfect: Rotherham’s Cultural Strategy 2003 – 2007 identifies the 
Council's support for cultural activity as contributing to the quality of 
life, providing a path into employment and as an economic 
regenerator.  

• The (forthcoming) Green Spaces Strategy is being developed to ensure 
that limited resources can be targeted so that the people of 
Rotherham can enjoy the best possible accessible green spaces, 
regardless of ownership, across the Borough. It will follow an approach 
set out in Planning Policy Guidance PPG17. Both an audit of publicly 
accessible green space and a survey of current usage and user / non-
user views has been completed. It will lead to new accessibility and 
quality standards for green spaces and will prioritise sites for 
improvement to maximise health, cultural and environmental benefits, 
it will also set out recommendations for community involvement.  

• The Playing Pitch Strategy (to be completed in 2007) identifies how 
existing and future demand for community access to football, rugby, 
cricket and hockey pitches can best be met, and where 
improvements are needed to allow teams to progress to reach their full 
potential. It will aim to give good accessibility to high quality sites 
across the Borough. 

and: 
• Rotherham Early Education, Childcare and Extended Services Strategy 

2006 – 2008 
• Rotherham Sport and Recreation Plan  
• Rotherham PE and School Sport Strategy - Building Active Futures (2005 

- 2008) 
• PCT Physical Activity (2003) and Obesity Strategies (2004) 
• Youth Matters 
• Children’s Fund 
• Local Transport Plan 
• The Healthy Schools Scheme  

 
The Local Development Framework 
Because the Local Development Framework (LDF) which will supersede the 
Unitary Development Plan will take a number of years to complete, work on 
its development will be prioritised. Significant issues will therefore be 
summarised in a core strategy as a temporary measure. A Local Heritage 
section will cover Green Space Networks and these will in turn encompass 
fixed play provision. The Council in partnership with national agencies and 
local stakeholders will ensure the safeguarding and enhancement of the 
special quality and character of the Borough's natural, historic and cultural 

Page 23



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

heritage by promoting initiatives and requiring development that protect 
and, where appropriate, enhance and manage green spaces, buildings, 
habitats, species or other assets of acknowledged heritage importance. This 
will be commensurate with their statutory status and their relative national, 
regional, sub-regional or local value. Appropriate mitigation measures will be 
required to combat any potential direct and/or indirect adverse impacts of 
development recognising that there may be limits to the potential for 
particular heritage assets to accept further development without causing 
irreversible damage. PPG17 Sport and Recreation which informs this 
framework provides guidance on the role of the planning system in assessing 
opportunities and needs for sport and recreation provision and safeguarding 
open space which has recreational value. 
 
 
Evidence of Need 
This section looks at the evidence of need for play in Rotherham. It takes into 
account statistical information, audit findings and consultation results.  
 
Rotherham Borough 
About half of Rotherham is urban, with most of the population of 252,000 
living in urban areas, either in small towns such as Wath and Dinnington, or in 
the urban centre of Rotherham. Historically Rotherham’s two main industries 
were steel making and coal mining. The restructuring of these core industries 
and reductions in levels of economic activity during the last thirty years 
resulted in high levels of unemployment. Recently significant European and 
Government grants have targeted the economic and social issues within the 
sub region for a number of years. However play (which can be classed as an 
aspect of recreation) has failed to attract core funding. 
 
Deprivation 
Today 33% of Rotherham’s population live in areas which are amongst the 
20% most deprived nationally. 25% of Rotherham's population aged between 
0 and 15 years live in very low waged households or in households receiving 
workless benefits according to the 2004 Income Deprivation Affecting 
Children Index (Indices of Deprivation 2004). The Index also showed that in 
the most deprived neighbourhoods of Rotherham more than 50% of children 
were living in low-income households (on means tested benefits or very low 
waged) and 25% of all dependent children live in Lone Parent households. In 
2005 there were 64,000 children and young people aged 0 to 19 living in the 
Borough (Mid Year Population Estimates 2005, Office for National Statistics). 
Clearly therefore there is a great variation in the life experiences of children 

Page 24



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

and young people across Rotherham. It is for this reason that the emphasis of 
the play strategy will be on free play provision. 
 
Other statistics of interest; the 2001 Census learned that 407 young people 
aged 16-17 in Rotherham were parents (3.4%) and of those, 228 or 1.9% were 
lone parents. Rotherham’s under 18 conception rate in 2004 was 51.5 per 
thousand of females aged 15 to 17 (equivalent to 257 pregnancies in 2004) 
this compares to a national rate of 41.5 per thousand. Just under half of all 
teenage parents in the Borough have no qualifications.  In terms of 
educational deprivation the percentage rate of young people in Rotherham 
leaving school without any qualifications is high in comparison to the national 
average as is the percentage rate of young people not achieving 5 Grade 
A*-C GCSEs. These figures are even starker for Looked after Children in the 
Borough. In Rotherham, we know that less than half of all Looked after 
Children achieve 1 GCSE or equivalent. In September 2006, there were a 
total of 333 Looked after Children in the Borough. Analysis shows that this 
community is especially disadvantaged in terms of attainment and skills 
levels, income, health, housing and crime.  
 
Disability 

“Impairment is what we have. Disability is what we experience.” 
International Year of Disabled People (1981) 

Around 770,000 (7%) of children in the UK are disabled. Of Rotherham’s total 
population of children and young people, 5.16% or 3,300 are classed as 
being disabled under the 2001 Census definition of limiting long term illness. 
Disabled children and young people currently face multiple barriers which 
make it more difficult for them to achieve their potential, to achieve the 
outcomes their peers expect. They also experience discrimination on the 
grounds of their impairment(s). These barriers and discriminative practices will 
often appear in the built environment and institutionalised systems, thus 
making it difficult, or sometimes impossible, for disabled children and young 
people to participate. One of the strategy’s priorities is therefore to take 
positive action by removing barriers to ensure inclusive opportunities. The 
Rotherham Disability Equality Scheme demonstrates how the council, PCT 
and hospital trust will address this issue in a three year Action Plan. This 
strategy will contribute to the plan. 
 
Barriers to Play 
Our consultation with children and young people has indicated a number of 
factors which act as barriers to play. Some of these are physical while others 
are linked with accessibility and fear, either of the children and young 
people, or of their parents. Bullying and ‘bad people’ have been cited as 

Page 25



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

have public transport, the condition of local green spaces and the quality of 
equipment. A national survey, carried out for the Anti-Bullying Alliance (2006), 
found that 56 per cent of 7-18-year-olds had seen another young person 
being bullied in the past year. Because of the various fears of parents and 
carers children are often kept in or close to their homes and often ‘play’ on 
their computer or watch the television instead. Perhaps the greatest single 
impact on children and young people’s freedom to play has been the rise of 
the car, there are now 32 million of them. In the past the street had been a 
place for play. There is little connection now between the home and the 
street.  
 
The partnership will aim to provide inclusive play provision that is open and 
accessible to all and take positive action in removing disabling barriers so 
that disabled children and non disabled children from all backgrounds and 
communities can participate in play. 
 
Equality and Inclusion 

“What do we mean by inclusion? The concept attracts anxiety, 
fears about ‘incompetence’, anxiety about risk taking. But inclusion 
is not a single structure. It is a process by which we acknowledge 
the rights of all children to be a part of their local communities.”  

Micheline Mason from Parents for Inclusion 
 

The Play Partnership and Rotherham Council are committed to promoting 
equality of opportunity for young people. They recognise that elements 
within society hold negative attitudes, stereotypes and myths about young 
people and that these can lead to them being socially and economically 
disadvantaged, excluded and marginalised. The play partnership fully 
supports the principles of equality and inclusion establishing the black 
minority ethnic (BME) and hard to reach sub-groups to address issues relating 
to these issues. Rotherham has a majority white British population with fewer 
in minority ethnic groups than the national average. Based on a 2003 
estimate, 5.2% of the population belong to minority ethnic groups, with 4.1% 
being non-white. The largest minority ethnic group is Pakistani in origin with 2% 
of the total population, compared to an average of 1.5% across England. 
Other groups include Chinese, Indian, Irish, Yemeni, Black African and Dual 
Heritage. Minority ethnic residents tend to live around Rotherham town 
centre, in areas such as Eastwood, Masbrough and Wellgate. Whilst the 
White British and Irish Populations are fairly static, other ethnic groups are 
growing in number. Through work with representative groups such as 
Rotherham Ethnic Minorities Association, opportunities will be taken to 
address local needs through targeted consultation to ensure inclusion and 
appropriately targeted provision. The work of the hard to reach sub-group 

Page 26



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

specifically addressed the needs of asylum seeker / refugee and migrant 
worker communities. A number of voluntary organisations in particular 
address the needs of these groups and are key to identifying solutions to the 
particular problems that they face. 
 
The partnership therefore recognises the special requirements of those areas 
and groups with the poorest access to good play opportunities, with an 
emphasis on the inclusion of disabled children and young people, and those 
who currently have less access (for example, girls, children and young 
people from ethnic or religious minorities, children in care, children of 
refugees, travellers and homeless families and those living in rural areas). 
 
Public Perceptions of Young People  

66% of respondents to the Rotherham Quality of Life Survey 2006 
(Ipsos MORI North) say that teenagers hanging around on the 
streets are either a very or fairly big problem.  

 
In recent years there has been criticism of young people (teenage children) 
in respect of their (perceived) anti-social behaviour. Young people generally 
suffer from a lack of both indoor and outdoor facilities in Rotherham. Results 
from the Lifestyle Survey 2005 show that young people are bored, have no 
facilities and nowhere to hang out. Green spaces which are the obvious 
place to make such provisions are often ruled out by local householders. 
There needs to be community recognition of the role of green spaces in 
providing recreational opportunities for all. Young people are as entitled as 
any other section of the community to consideration when providing 
recreational facilities. The results of preliminary consultation suggests that 
what they are most in need of are places to ‘hang out’ in the form of seating 
and sheltered seating, skateboard parks, multi use games areas, bmx 
facilities etc. It shows that both sexes want somewhere to meet their friends. 
Street corners and shopping frontages are often the only places where they 
can go. But in these locations young people can be considered to be 
threatening and intimidating. The reality is that young people have their own 
fears about personal safety. The findings of our consultation again showed 
that young people are concerned about bullying and worried by other 
groups of young people. 
 
Some young people feel disengaged from society. Often they come from 
families which are not supportive and where parents may also have had 
similar experiences. Such disengagement can be generational and breaking 
the downwards spiral is challenging. These factors may lead to reinforced 
behaviour with young people hanging around with others in a similar 

Page 27



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

situation. In recognising this problem positive action will be taken to address 
the under provision of facilities and support needed by young people. 
 
 

Play Facilities and Play Service Providers 
A broad audit of play has been carried out. This will continue to be updated 
as further information becomes available. The findings of preliminary 
consultation established that children and young people play in a range of 
locations in Rotherham which cannot be easily categorised. It also learned 
that whilst some of these locations can be considered to be safe, others are 
distinctly hazardous. For example some children and young people said that 
they play on railway property and on building sites – clearly places where 
there is danger. Other more popular places for play include at home or at a 
friends house, streams and rivers, waste land, local roads, beer gardens, car 
parks etc. Whilst the relevance of these locations for play is recognised, this 
audit cannot provide a full record of every location where children and 
young people engage in play. The places where young people meet 
regularly change – they do not always meet in the same places but rather 
move around different localities. 
 
Fixed Play Provision 
An audit (both quantitative and qualitative) of existing fixed play provision 
across Rotherham has been carried out. This will continue to provide 
updated information over the life of the strategy. It has identified current 
fixed provision in terms of ownership, quantity, distribution, and in the case of 
playgrounds, the play value and quality of equipment. It has also taken into 
account other public places where children and young people play. These 
include formal parks and playgrounds, green space (playing fields / sports 
pitches, amenity areas, cemeteries, woodland and natural areas), 
community halls, schools, youth centres and childcare schemes with an 
element of play e.g. pre & after school clubs, day nurseries, holiday clubs, 
playgroups, etc. Fixed play provision in the absence of better standards, 
should work toward those of the National Playing Fields Association (NPFA) 
where they are felt to be appropriate. However in some cases, the 
specification may not be considered to be appropriate because for 
example a play area may not need to be fenced, whereas the standard 
demands it. These standards cover Local Equipped Areas of Play (LEAPs) and 
Neighbourhood Equipped Areas of Play (NEAPs). Both have nationally 
approved catchments areas. Using these catchments along with qualitative 
data, it has been possible to identify the main gaps in provision of play 
equipment for under 12 year olds. Multi use games areas and covered 
seating or youth shelters for young people do not have qualitative 

Page 28



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

assessments as each type of provisions provides a similar equipment 
specification. So long as this is well maintained it is the distribution of 
equipment that is the main concern. Skateboard parks and BMX facilities are 
graded in terms of their play value against their maintenance condition. 
There is only a small strategic provision of these facilities within Rotherham. All 
of these facilities are plotted on the play maps in this document. Consultation 
results clearly ask for more play opportunities ranging from equipment 
provision to a requirement for more local parks. Swimming pools are also high 
on the list – Rotherham is currently designing and building four new pools. As 
shown, affordability is an issue in Rotherham and opportunities to enable 
children and young people to gain access to charged for facilities will be 
examined with an aim to make access free or accessible at a low access 
charge. Young people are desperate for places to hang out, and this 
message comes up time and time again. Accessibility has been assessed 
using guidance by John Hicks in "Accessible and Inclusive Playspace" 
(appendix 2) to calculate the access scores for all the play areas in 
Rotherham.  
 
Much of the funding allocated for new play areas is for risk management in 
the form of safety surfacing, fencing to exclude dogs (the emphasis on 
creating equipped play compounds is not always appropriate) and other 
items such as footpaths as well as general provisions including seats, bins and 
signs that add little to play value (though some do attract points on the NPFA 
scoring system).  Consequently the sum available for play equipment is 
significantly diminished. Funding driven cycles often allow insufficient time to 
design conventional play equipment-based schemes, and experience 
suggests that many play companies have limited capability to design 
stimulating environments or to take due regard of site practicalities.  
Consequently at times schemes have only been adequate instead of 
exceptional.  
 
Findings from consultation with children, young people and others suggest 
that there needs to be a shift in emphasis towards stimulating environments 
that provide opportunities for play that may include some fixed 
equipment but also offer other opportunities for physical and sensory 
experiences, learning and interaction.  There are issues to consider and risks 
to manage, but these should be done in a far more positive way.  If we are 
to consider this we will need to consider whether scoring systems such that of 
the NPFA are adequately suited to assessing play value and quality for none-
equipment based schemes or elements. Similarly previous delivery timescales 
have often precluded real consultation or involvement with children and 
young people, and where this is carried out, the manner in which this is 
done has room for improvement. The drive to have projects led by 

Page 29



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

community and friends groups has in some cases created problems in 
delivering schemes, or in their siting. Better partnerships from the outset will 
help avoid some of the problems between these groups and those 
professionals with the skills or experience to provide advice and help deliver 
a successful scheme. It is clear therefore that unless we change public 
perceptions, methods of working or the requirements of funding bodies, it will 
be difficult to affect the significant improvements that could otherwise be 
possible. 
 
Playwork 
Playwork in Rotherham covers a wide range of workers who facilitate 
children and young people’s play opportunities outside the educational 
curriculum. Playworkers range from park based rangers, gardeners and 
neighbourhood wardens through to play rangers, outreach play projects and 
youth workers. Playwork takes place where adults support children’s play in 
settings such as after-school clubs, libraries and museums, holiday 
playschemes, adventure playgrounds, parks, playbuses, youth clubs and 
projects and neighbourhoods. Many of these settings will be subject to care 
standards and regulations and/or Ofsted inspection. 
 
The provision of play opportunities in communities across Rotherham is crucial 
in ensuring all children have equal access to play environments regardless of 
their background and circumstances. Playwork supports children in creating 
and determining their own goals and outcomes through play. Playwork 
principles establish the professional and ethical framework for playwork. They 
describe what is unique about play and playwork and provide the playwork 
perspective for working with children and young people. Although playwork 
as a profession has increased over the last five years there is a shortage of 
qualified playworkers both locally and nationally. 
 
Access to Play 
Consultation with children and young people has highlighted the difficulties 
that they experience in accessing play opportunities. Public transport runs 
infrequently and is often too expensive for them to use. Play England believes 
that a good childhood involves all children and young people being able to 
find places, near their homes, where they can play and meet their friends 
free of charge. Where a charge is necessary, efforts will be made to reduce 
this to a minimum wherever possible and incentivised schemes promoted. 
Issues coming forward from the most hard to reach groups including those in 
refuge accommodation, travellers, children and young people with 
disabilities, drug users etc highlighted fear of bullying, poor funding, lack of 
income, lack of awareness, and levels of staffing as key issues to be 
confronted. 

Page 30



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

 
Conclusions  
It is clear that with over a quarter of Rotherham's children and young people 
aged between 0 and 15 living in very low waged households or in 
households receiving workless benefits that play provision needs to be easily 
accessible to children and young people of all abilities, ethnic origins and 
circumstances. Where there are gaps in provision in areas with significant 
populations of children and young people, these must be addressed as a 
priority. Accessibility to facilities for all must be considered for existing facilities 
and for the placement of future facilities. Quality of provision should be 
maintained and improved where necessary to meet standards.   
 
The priorities of this strategy are identified in the following action plan and are 
summarised in the introduction to this document. The actions or targets 
stemming from these priorities follow under each priority heading. 
 
 

Monitoring & Evaluation 
It is crucial that the play strategy and action plan remains a ‘live’ document. 
The implementation of this strategy will be monitored and evaluated with 
reference to the evidence base. The monitoring baseline is set-out in the 
following action plan tables. The action plan will be regularly monitored to 
ensure that it is delivering targets to plan and that they are having their 
intended impact. The individual targets establish both responsibility and 
delivery dates and show clear links with the community strategy. The 
Partnership Steering Group will meet quarterly to review progress against 
each of the six priorities. The strategy will undergo an in-depth review on an 
annual basis to ensure that it continues to provide an effective response to 
local needs and circumstances. We will continue to engage with children 
and young people, users and non-users, residents, partners and visitors alike, 
in the monitoring and review of the strategy. 
 
The Partnership Steering Group will develop an evaluation methodology to 
measure the long-term benefits to children through play as a direct outcome 
of this strategy. 
 
 

Page 31



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8  23.01.07 
 

Play Strategy Action Plan   
 

Aim:  To improve opportunities to play for all children and young people in Rotherham Borough. 
 

1 Raise awareness of the value and significance of play for children and young people and to promote 
better understanding of the role of play in their personal development 

 What we will do Who has lead 
responsibility 

When we will 
do it 

How we will measure our success 
 

How this 
contributes to the 
Rotherham vision 

1.1 Create the role of Play Co-ordinator 
for Rotherham to co-ordinate activity 
and service the play partnership 
(which comprises those involved in 
delivering play in Rotherham)  

Culture and 
Leisure 

2007/8 Play Co-ordinator reports 
strategy outputs no less than 
4 times per annum 

Learning - 
people will be 
informed and 

enabled 

1.2 Raise awareness of play provision 
available for all and benefiting 
disabled, black / ethnic / minority and 
hard to reach children  

Culture and 
Leisure 

2007/8 
Ongoing 

The increase in participation 
from children and young 
people including target 
groups measured by surveys 
(annual Lifestyle Survey) 

Proud - equality 
of opportunity 
and choice 

Fairness 

1.3 Ensure that play is included in each of 
the seven neighbourhood charters 

Neighbourhoods 2007/8 Play forms a key element of 
each Neighbourhood 
Charter 

Achieving - 
Inequalities will 

be 
minimised. 

1.4 Assist organisations offering play 
opportunities to promote their service 
to potential and existing users  

Children and 
Young People’s 

Services / 
Partnership 

2007/8 
Ongoing 

Satisfaction survey to 
participating organisations 

Learning - 
Rotherham 

people will be 
informed 

1.5 Maintain links with the database of 
play providers and regularly circulate 
information on new developments 
and training  

Children and 
Young People’s 

Services 
2007/8 

Ongoing 
Database maintained & 
information circulated no less 
than 4 times per annum 

Learning - 
Rotherham 

people will be 
informed 

1.6 Deliver workshops on the importance 
of play to carers  

Children and 
Young People’s 

Services / 
Ongoing for 
the life of the 

strategy 
Number of carers attending 
workshops per annum 

Learning - 
people will be 
informed and 

P
a
g
e
 3

2



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8  23.01.07 
 

Rotherham 
Voluntary 

Consortium 
enabled 

1.7 Raise awareness of the importance of 
play and the role of the strategy with 
key funding partners and other 
organisations 

Culture and 
Leisure  / Children 

and Young 
People’s Services 

2007/8 Partner awareness survey at 
year end – year one 

Rotherham Proud 
- Rotherham will 
have a positive 
external image 

1.8 Actively promote the importance of 
play and an active lifestyle as a 
method of supporting the reduction of 
childhood obesity 

Rotherham PCT / 
Partnership 

2008/9 
Ongoing 

Number of activities delivered  
Number of publicity leaflets 
produced 

Alive - where 
people are 

healthy, active & 
enjoy life to the 

full 
1.9 Through the Play Partnership, 

Rotherham will participate annually in 
National Play Day 
 
 

Children and 
Young People’s 
Services 

Annually Number of Play Day events 
delivered annually and 
attendance numbers 

Proud - 
achievement 

and diversity will 
be 

celebrated 
1.10 To organise an annual celebration 

event to raise awareness of successful 
play projects 

Culture and 
Leisure 

 
Annual target Number of celebration 

events delivered 
Proud - 

achievement 
and diversity will 

be 
celebrated 

2 Provide a targeted range of challenging and exciting play spaces for children and young people 
 What we will do Who has lead 

responsibility 
When we will 

do it 
How we will measure our success 
 

How this 
contributes to the 
Rotherham vision 

2.1 Provide opportunities for risk and 
challenge in play provision 

Culture and 
Leisure   

Ongoing for 
the life of the 

strategy 

Number of new provisions 
with opportunities for risk and 
challenge in play provision 

Alive - where 
people are 

healthy, active & 
enjoy life to the 

full 
2.2 Using the results from the play audit, 

ensure that play provision is 
strategically targeted and 
appropriately prioritised across the 
Borough 

Culture and 
Leisure   

Early 
targeting 

during 2007/8 
then 

Ongoing 

Number of strategically 
targeted new facilities for 
children and young people  

Achieving - 
Inequalities will 

be 
minimised 

P
a

g
e
 3

3



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8  23.01.07 
 

2.3 Develop innovative approaches to 
provide children and young people 
with access to new play experiences  

Culture and 
Leisure   

Ongoing for 
the life of the 

strategy 
Number of innovative new 
play experiences created 

Achieving - 
known for the 
high quality 

design of public 
spaces 

2.4 Develop coordinated external funding 
programmes to ensure appropriate 
and effectively targeted play 
provision for children and young 
people across Rotherham 

Culture and 
Leisure   

Initial BIG bid 
then 

Ongoing 
Level of funding generated 
to fund new play provision for 
children and young people 
across Rotherham 

Achieving - 
known for the 
high quality 

design of public 
spaces 

2.5 Actively pursue agreements with 
developers  through Section 106 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
for the appropriate funding towards 
the development of play through the 
planning system 

Planning and 
Transportation 

Ongoing 
throughout 

the life of the 
strategy 

Number of Section 106 
agreements entered into 
over the lifetime of the 
strategy (2006 – 2012) 

Achieving - 
known for the 
high quality 

design of public 
spaces 

2.6 Seek opportunities to promote the 
benefits of quiet streets (through 
Home Zones / 20 mph zones / quiet 
lanes and the planning system) 

Planning and 
Transportation 

Ongoing as 
opportunities 

allow 
Number of new zones 
created over the lifetime of 
the strategy (2006 – 2012) 

Safe - safe, 
clean, green and 
well maintained, 
& well-designed 

2.7 Provide facilities for young people 
giving them a sense of ownership.  

Culture and 
Leisure   

Ongoing 
throughout 

the life of the 
strategy 

Number of facilities provided 
that match identified need 

Proud - strong, 
sustainable and 

cohesive 
communities 

2.8 Develop a dialogue between the 
partnership and children and young 
people on the development and use 
of facilities provided for their benefit 

Culture and 
Leisure 

Ongoing 
throughout 

the life of the 
strategy 

Number of children and 
young people involved in 
commenting on the creation 
of new facilities 

Learning - being 
informed, 

innovative and 
constructively 
challenging 

2.9 Encourage creative play stimulated 
by a range of media from stories and 
engagement in literacy based 
activities to drama and the arts etc  

Children and 
Young People’s 

Services /  Culture 
and Leisure   

2007/8 
Ongoing 

Monitor the number and type 
of activities delivered for 
children through library site 
plans and other cultural 
providers.  Targets will be set 
for the number of activities to 
be run at key points in the 

Learning - being 
informed, 

innovative and 
constructively 
challenging 

P
a
g
e
 3

4



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8  23.01.07 
 

year e.g. during the summer 
holidays. 

 Identify those areas where access to 
play areas needs to be improved for 
safety reasons. 

Planning and 
Transportation 

2007/8 & 
Ongoing 

Number of road safety and 
access schemes 
implemented  

Achieving - 
neighbourhoods 
are safe, clean, 

green, well 
maintained 
& designed 

3  To support and maintain a strong and effective play partnership representing all sectors of the community 
which will co-ordinate and enable good quality, sustainable play.  

 What we will do Who has lead 
responsibility 

When we will 
do it 

How we will measure our success 
 

How this 
contributes to the 
Rotherham vision 

3.1 Support and chair meetings of the 
partnership 

Play Co-ordinator 
– Leisure and 
Green Spaces 

Commencing 
2007/8 

Ongoing 
Numbers attending meetings 
/ number of meetings per 
annum  

Learning - a 
sense of purpose 

3.2 Monitor & evaluate the play strategy 
and act upon recommendations 

Play Co-ordinator 
– Leisure and 
Green Spaces 

Annually Play Strategy annually 
monitored and evaluated 

Learning - being 
informed, 

innovative and 
constructively 
challenging 

3.3 Keep the partnership informed and up 
to date with national, regional and 
international best practice 

Play Co-ordinator 
– Leisure and 
Green Spaces 

Quarterly  Frequency of information 
updates to the play 
partnership 

Learning - being 
informed, 

innovative and 
constructively 
challenging 

4 Recognise and value the range of workers who deliver play opportunities across all sectors, to share good 
practice and to increase the number of qualified playworkers in Rotherham 

 What we will do Who has lead 
responsibility 

When we will 
do it 

How we will measure our success 
 

How this 
contributes to the 
Rotherham vision 

4.1 Encourage under represented groups 
to train in playwork 

Children and 
Young People’s 
Services / Play 
Co-ordinator 

Annually Number of people from VRG 
assessed / achieved 
playwork training 

Learning - 
learning / 

development 
opportunity 
available & 

P
a

g
e
 3

5



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8  23.01.07 
 

accessible to all 
4.2 Identify minimum standards of training 

for workers who deliver play and 
benchmark where possible  

Children and 
Young People’s 
Services / Play 
Co-ordinator 

Annually Minimum standards identified 
/ benchmarking system in 
place 

Learning - 
learning / 

development 
opportunity 
available & 

accessible to all 
4.3 Evaluate and improve the range of 

training options for all workers who 
deliver play in Rotherham  

Children and 
Young People’s 
Services  / Play 
Co-ordinator 

2007/8 Both monitoring process and 
a system to record training 
accessed by workers who 
deliver play in place 

Learning - 
learning / 

development 
opportunity 
available & 

accessible to all 
4.4 Increase the number of qualified 

playworkers in Rotherham  
Children and 

Young People’s 
Services 

Annually Number of people who have 
accessed / achieved NVQ2 
or NVQ3 in playwork 

Learning - 
learning / 

development 
opportunity 
available & 

accessible to all 
4.5 Maintain a register of playworks Children and 

Young People’s 
Services 

Ongoing Register updated quarterly Learning - 
learning / 

development 
opportunity 
available & 

accessible to all 
4.6 Set quality standards for park rangers 

delivering play  
Culture and 

Leisure 
March 2008 Quality standards in place by 

March 2008 (or earlier) 
Learning - self-
confident and 
have a sense of 

purpose 
5 Involve children and young people in the planning, design, delivery and feedback on the management 

of future play facilities. 
 What we will do Who has lead 

responsibility 
When we will 

do it 
How we will measure our success 
 

How this 
contributes to the 
Rotherham vision 

 5.1 Ensure that all children and young 
people’s views are included in 

Children and 
Young People’s 

Ongoing for 
the life of the 

Monitor all schemes delivered 
in terms of input from children 

Proud - 
Achievement 

P
a
g
e
 3

6



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8  23.01.07 
 

decisions that affect them  Services strategy and young people and diversity will 
be 

celebrated 
5.2 Ensure that all children and young 

people have a greater sense of 
involvement and ownership in the 
planning of new or refurbished fixed 
play provision  

Culture and 
Leisure  / Children 
and Young 
People’s Services 

Ongoing for 
the life of the 

strategy 
Number of children and 
young people involved in 
commenting and 
involvement in new and 
refurbished play provision 

Learning - 
develop and 

achieve their full 
potential 

6 Identify and remove barriers preventing children and young people from accessing play opportunities 
 What we will do Who has lead 

responsibility 
When we will 

do it 
How we will measure our success 
 

How this 
contributes to the 
Rotherham vision 

6.1 To enable people to recognise and 
define the different types of bullying, 
understand their role in stopping 
bullying and develop strategies and 
tactics for dealing with bullying  

Rotherham 
Healthy Schools 

Scheme, 
Emotional Health 
& Well Being Task 

Group, Anti- 
Bullying Steering 
Group & Schools 

Ongoing for 
the life of the 

strategy 
• Decline in number of 

reported incidents 
• Results determined by 

Healthy Schools Monitoring 
visits undertaken bi-
annually 

Safe - free from 
crime and the 
fear of crime 

6.2 Investigate opportunities to improve 
the accessibility of key sites through 
cheaper public transport (links with 
Rothercard), and more accessible 
transport (links with community 
transport)  

SYPTE / Planning 
and 

Transportation 
Ongoing for 
the life of the 

strategy 
Number of sites with 
improved accessibility 
annually 

Proud - strong, 
sustainable and 

cohesive 
communities 

6.3 Provide inclusive play provision that is 
open and accessible to all and take 
positive action in removing perceived 
disabling barriers so that disabled 
children and non disabled children 
from all backgrounds and 
communities can participate in play      

Partnership 
members 

Bi-annually 
Annually 

Evaluate / monitor play 
provision 
Number of people attending 
• Inclusive play practice 

training 
• Awareness raising sessions 

of inclusive play 

Proud - strong, 
sustainable and 

cohesive 
communities 

6.4 Ensure that general play related 
facilities; pools, pitches etc are either 
free or affordable through a range of 

Culture and 
Leisure   

2007/8 
Ongoing 

Increased use of Leisure 
facilities and pitches over the 
life of the strategy 

Proud - strong, 
sustainable and 

cohesive 

P
a

g
e
 3

7



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8  23.01.07 
 

measures from discount schemes to 
the use of the Rothercard 

Reductions in levels of obesity 
over the life of the strategy 

communities 

P
a
g
e
 3

8



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

 
 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1  

Definitions 
There are other key areas of “play” and we use the following 
definitions for the purposes of this document: 

 
Playwork is what adults do to help provide play-centred opportunities 
for play. This involves the creation, operation and change of many 
physical and human environments that maximise opportunities for 
children to access a wide variety of play experiences. Such 
experiences include, developing social, physical, intellectual, creative 
and emotional skills of the child and enables them to experiment by 
taking risks.  Playwork will always, by its nature, aim to be inclusive of 
children of different abilities, ethnic background and circumstances. 

 
Playworkers are people who work within services that aim to provide 
for children's play.  They are able to build good relationships with 
children and young people, listening to, socialising with, and 
understanding their needs.  They should enable children and young 
people to recognise, create, develop and explore play experiences.  

 
Play Activity is what children and young people do.  It is how they use 
a play space, the environment, materials or equipment for the 
purposes of playing in a specific way.  

 
Play Provision is the setting or materials that are provided to create 
play opportunities. This can be indoor, outdoor, supervised or 
unsupervised. It may be structured or unstructured. 

 
Play Care is services that care for children whilst parents and carers are 
elsewhere and offer play opportunities and play activities for children.  
This may include out of school clubs (before school / after school / 
holiday provision), pre-schools, day nurseries, childminders and 
crèches.  

 
Play Space is an area that can be used for children to play in. This 
includes general community spaces such as streets and woods.  It is 

Page 39



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

important to remember that any space can be used as a play space 
(theory of play frames), children see no boundaries. 

 
Play Opportunity is the potential for children to use a play space, the 
environment, materials or equipment for the purposes of playing in a 
freely chosen and child directed way with a child motivated outcome. 

 
 
 
Appendix 2 
 
The Play Partnership, Audit and Consultation  
The two key elements to producing a personalised and relevant play strategy 
for Rotherham were: 

• The development of a committed and effective Play Partnership 
            and  

• Undertaking a thorough and effective audit of current provision and a 
broad programme of consultation  

 
Rotherham Play Partnership  
The Play Partnership was established to promote play in its broadest sense in 
Rotherham. It has sought to involve all stakeholders who deliver play 
throughout the Borough. The partnership is therefore comprised of 
representative groups, both statutory and non statutory, from the public, 
voluntary and private sectors. It is led by Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 
Council. Partnership meetings have been a regular feature of the 
development of this strategy. A series of sub groups were established to 
examine specific areas in more detail. These included the following: 

• Audit Sub–group 
• BME Sub–group 
• Hard to Reach Sub-group 
• Consultation Sub-group 
• Strategy Sub-group 

 
For this strategy to be effective, all members of the play partnership who are 
involved in delivering play in its various aspects in Rotherham must have a 
sense of ownership.  
 
Audit of Play Facilities and Play Service Providers 
 
Introduction 

Page 40



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

A quantitative and qualitative audit of current play provision across the 
borough has been carried out. It takes into account both fixed equipment 
and play opportunities led by playworkers. It assesses the current fixed 
provision in terms of ownership, quantity, quality, distribution, and in the case 
of playgrounds, inclusiveness and the play value of equipment.  It takes into 
account other public places where children and young people play. This 
includes formal parks and playgrounds, green space (playing fields/sports 
pitches, amenity areas, cemeteries, woodland and natural areas), 
community halls, schools, youth centres and childcare schemes with an 
element of play e.g. pre & after school clubs, day nurseries, holiday clubs, 
playgroups, etc. 
 
Whilst the audit sought to identify the main publicly available places where 
children and young people play, it is recognised that they also play in a 
range of locations which cannot be easily categorised or identified, some 
safe and some distinctly hazardous. The consultation results found that some 
children and young people play on railway property and in building sites – 
clearly places where they are in danger. Other places include at home or at 
a friends house, streams and rivers, waste land, roads, beer gardens, car 
parks etc. This audit acknowledges these and recognises their relevance in 
the overall provision in Rotherham, although these places are beyond the 
scope of this audit which concentrates on formal and other public sites. 
Similarly there are other places which welcome play though which are not 
provided specifically for that purpose for example libraries, museums and 
galleries.  
 
Play Provision  
Children’s playgrounds are an invaluable, and in most cases, free local 
facility. In Rotherham, there are currently 104 equipped play areas, 36 of 
which are on land owned by Parish Councils. The calculated quality (as 
determined by the NPFA) of a playground is based on its play value and the 
age and condition of the play equipment. For the purpose of this strategy, 
play areas with a play value of between 0 and 14 can only be classed as low 
quality. Play areas with a play value of between 15 and 25 cannot be higher 
than medium quality, and only those play areas with a play value in excess 
of 25 can be classed as high quality. Using this method, Rotherham has 37 
play areas of low quality, 42 of medium quality and 25 of high quality.  
 
All children regardless of ability are entitled to a range of play opportunities. 
New play space in Rotherham is designed to be accessible for all and 
wherever possible existing provision is gradually being improved to modern 
day standards. All playgrounds maintained and managed by the Council 
have been assessed to establish the degree that a site and /or equipment is 

Page 41



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

accessible and inclusive (within the meaning of the Disibility Discrimination 
Act 1995).  
Accessibility has been assessed using guidance by John Hicks in "Accessible 
and Inclusive Playspace" to calculate the access scores for all the play areas 
in Rotherham. The guidance enables a score to be generated of between 1 
(Very High - Accessible) to 5 (Very Low - Inaccessible). The following table 
shows the results in Rotherham grouped by Area Assembly.  
 
 Very 

High 
High Medium Low Very 

Low 
Total 

Rother Valley 
South 

0 1 8 8 3 20 

Rother Valley 
West 

1 1 5 9 2 18 

Rotherham 
North 

2 4 3 4 3 16 

Rotherham 
South 

0 6 2 3 1 12 

Wentworth 
North 

0 4 4 5 2 15 

Wentworth 
South 

0 2 5 3 1 11 

Wentworth 
Valley 

0 4 3 3 1 11 

Total 3 22 30 34 13 103 
 
The table below identifies the percentage of facilities in Rotherham that fall 
into each category. 
 

Playgrounds with Access Level 1 3% 
Playgrounds with Access Level 2 22% 
Playgrounds with Access Level 3 29% 
Playgrounds with Access Level 4 34% 
Playgrounds with Access Level 5 13% 
 
 
The need for regular inspections of play areas and their equipment, followed 
by effective maintenance and repair when it is needed, is self evident. This 
has also been increasingly reinforced in recent years as courts of law have 
demanded proof of regular inspection and maintenance when litigation for 
play injuries is being heard. Proof can consist of written logs recording 

Page 42



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

playground inspections, maintenance and repairs, amendments, new 
equipment installation dates, and accident records. 
 
The hierarchy of inspections should be as follows: 
 

• Routine Visual Inspections 
• Quarterly Maintenance, Repair and Safety Checks 
• Annual Risk Assessment 
• Annual Independent Inspections 

 
In line with recognised guidance from the HSE and NPFA, Rotherham 
Metropolitan Borough Council carries out a risk assessment of each play area 
annually. The methodology assesses the likely severity of an injury should an 
accident occur and the probability of that accident occurring. Both severity 
and probability are marked from 1 to 5 with 1 - Very Low; 2 - Slight; 3 - 
Moderate; 4 - High; 5 Very High. The risk value is then the product of the two 
components.  
 
Young people up to the age of 19yrs also need recreational and play 
facilities, clearly these will differ from those required by younger children. 
Currently the most popular and asked for facilities from this age group are 
multi use games areas (MUGA’s), skate parks and (sheltered) meeting 
places. There are currently 15 MUGA’s in Rotherham, with a further 14 with 
either single or double end panels but no side panels, 8 areas with 
skateboard facilities, and 16 areas with teenage seating.  
 
Fixed play provision in Rotherham is delivered through a number of providers.  
These include: 
 

• Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council 
• Parish Councils 
• Coal Industry Social Welfare Organisation (CISWO) 
• Schools 
• Private and Voluntary Organisations 

 
Each of the individual providers of play services can be defined in the 
following way: 
 
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council:   
The main provider and maintainer of public parks, playgrounds, playing fields 
/ sports pitches, green space, woodlands and areas of open water across 
Rotherham Borough.   
 

Page 43



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

The authority provides 11 urban parks with a range of facilities and 68 
playgrounds based either within the parks or standing alone. Records of 
distribution, quality, data and maintenance of its play areas are stored and 
updated on a weekly basis. The authority also owns and manages large 
areas of green space including woodlands, country parks, sports pitches 
(doubling up as playing fields), and housing greens. A comprehensive Green 
Space Audit and Playing / Sports Pitch Audit have been carried out within 
the last 18 months and contribute to this audit. 
 
Many Council buildings, including community halls, host childcare services 
with elements of play included in the care scheme. Other provisions include 
the newly refurbished Clifton Park Museum, a free resource, open six days a 
week, that provides a safe, bright and stimulating space within which visitors 
have the freedom to engage in a range of self-directed learning activities. 
Primarily, it aims to facilitate learning through play and does this through 
hands-on and interactive exhibits (including computer interactives), quizzes 
and trails. It offers a range of organised activities which encourage 
imaginative play through making things, object-handling or role-play 
including monthly Family Fun Days and School Holiday Programmes. Above 
all, it's something fun to do that can be enjoyed by people of all ages and 
from all walks of life. 
 
Schools:  
Schools are a major play provider with facilities ranging from small 
playgrounds with floor markings and shaded areas, to large sports halls and a 
full size synthetic turf pitch. Some are only in use during the school day, and 
therefore are not audited in this Strategy. The facilities mainly benefit young 
people attending school although the local management of schools has 
meant that some schools make their facilities available to the local 
community for hire, while others do not. The latter can result in significant 
resources within some local communities not being available for young 
people and adults, out of school hours. However this should improve over the 
lifetime of the Strategy as Rotherham embraces the Government’s agenda 
for all schools to become extended schools by 2010. Schools also provide 
space for services such as pre / after school clubs and holiday clubs.  All 
schools in the Rotherham area were sent an audit questionnaire for 
completion and return. 
 
Parish Councils: 
Rotherham’s 29 Parish Councils are another major provider of play facilities. 
Serving mainly the rural and semi rural areas of Rotherham, Parish Councils 
own 36 playgrounds and a number of playing fields / sports pitches and 
village halls. The fields and pitches are maintained by the council. All 

Page 44



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

Rotherham Parish Councils have been sent a postal questionnaire for 
completion and return and some have participated on the partnership 
steering group.  
 
CISWO: 
The Coal Industry Social Welfare Organisation is a national charity which 
focuses on the delivery of community and personal welfare services within 
mining and former mining communities.  The facilities managed by CISWO 
include play facilities, playing pitches and halls available for the local 
community to hire for various purposes. 
 
Private/Voluntary Organisations: 
These are generally land owners, small businesses or voluntary organisations 
which hire, lease or own their property within the local community. Play 
provision in this category tends to be a part of a mix of activities provided 
within a particular service e.g. private play area within a country park, day 
nursery, playgroup, cub scouts, etc. Comprehensive information of all 
organisations providing services for young people is available from the 
Children’s Information Service. 
 
Some private landowners both directly and indirectly provide children’s play 
areas in the form of pub gardens, and dedicated facilities, established 
woodland, plantations, fields, reservoirs, lakes and ‘hidden corners’ where 
children will spend hours climbing trees, exploring, making dens, etc. There 
are also a range of play opportunities provided through local businesses 
which include purpose built themed soft play facilities in pub and restaurant 
buildings as well as the less well play facilities in pub beer gardens etc. 

 
Information on the following tables was correct at 27. 11. 2006 

 
Equipped Playgrounds 
Table 1: Playground Provision in the Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 
(excludes school playgrounds) 

Playground Provider No of Sites 
Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough Council - Culture 
and Leisure Service 

49 

Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough Council - 
Neighbourhoods 

17 

Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough Council - 
Environment and 

1 

Page 45



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

Development Services 
Parish Council 36 
Community 1 
Total Provision Identified 104 

 
Urban Parks 
Table 2: Urban Parks Provision in the Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 

Urban Park Provider No of Sites 
Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough Council - Culture 
and Leisure 

11 

Total Provision Identified 11 
 
Playing/Sports Pitches 
Table 3: Playing/Sports Pitch Provision in the Rotherham Metropolitan 

  Borough 
Provider No of Sites No of 

Pitches 
Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

35 81 
Education Sites 95 185 
Private/Voluntary Sports 
Clubs 

20 35 
Trust 2 2 
CISWO 7 24 
Parish 34 57 
Total Provision Identified  193 384 

 
Table 4: Playing Pitch Provision with No Secured Community Use in the 
Rotherham   
             Metropolitan Borough 

Pitch Provider No of Sites No of 
Pitches 

Education Sites 73 124 
Private/Voluntary Sports 
Clubs 

1 2 

Total Provision Identified 74 126 
 
Green Space 
Table 5: Green Space Provision in the Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 

Typology No of Sites 
Amenity Green Space 187 

Page 46



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

Outdoor Sports Space 44 
Parks 56 
Cemeteries 40 
Natural Areas 100 
Total Provision Identified 427 

 
Schools  
 
Table 6: Schools in the Rotherham Metropolitan Borough 

Typology No of Sites 
Primary  107 
Special 7 
Secondary 16 
Colleges of Further 
Education 

3 
Total Provision Identified* 133 

*The play facilities provided by schools are primarily for children’s use during 
the school day. However some schools offer community use of facilities after 
school.  
 
 
 
Children’s Services / Play 
Table 7: Children’s Service/Play Provision within the Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough 

Typology No of Sites 
After School Clubs 14 
Before and After School 
Clubs 

17 
Breakfast Clubs 13 
Day Nurseries  27 
Holiday Clubs 16 
Parent and Toddler Groups 68 
Pre School/Playgroups 34 
Youth Centres 27 
Outdoor Education Centres 3 
Specialist Service 8 
Total Provision Identified*  227 

*Some organisations provide more than one service  
 
Playwork 
 

Page 47



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

Extended Schools  
Schools will provide community access to their facilities, including 
playgrounds, sports fields, and specialised play areas, where there is a 
demand. Another of the core offers will be a varied menu of activities.  
Schools will be required to provide access to a range of activities for children 
and young people, though these need not be on a school site or directly 
provided by the school. Because these will be accessible outside the school’s 
core hours, extended schools potentially provide a valuable community 
resource for children and young people to participate in play activities. 
 
Children’s Centres 
There are 12 phase one Children’s Centres in Rotherham which provide good 
quality childcare for children aged 0 – 5 years old.  Children are able to 
experience a range of activities to enable them to learn through play.  Some 
of the Children’s Centres are also providing out of school care for older 
children and young people. A further 8 children’s centres are to be build in 
phase 2 by 2008. 
 
Childcare 
Childcare in Rotherham is growing rapidly.  There is a range of providers that 
care for children from birth to 14 (16 for children with impairments).  These 
include childminders, day nurseries, playgroups and out of school clubs 
(before, after and during school holidays).  All providers provide a safe, 
stimulating environment, whilst giving children and young people the 
opportunity to experiment through play. 
 
Uniformed Groups 
In Rotherham there are several uniformed organisations including Sea 
Cadets, Boy’s Brigade, Cubs and Brownies, etc. These have been included as 
examples of play provision but are border-line in terms of the definition of 
play and the charges made. The following are examples: 
 
Girl Guiding UK is a national organisation also known as Guiding.  Through 
Guiding girls and young women have the opportunity to develop 
independence, self esteem, self confidence and self management skills.  The 
aim of Guiding is to help them develop emotionally, mentally, physically and 
spiritually, so that they can make a positive contribution to their community 
and the wider world.  Most of this is achieved through play and having the 
opportunity to experiment with the natural elements, earth, air, fire and 
water. 
 
Another organisation is the Scout Association which provides adventurous 
activities and personal development opportunities for children and young 

Page 48



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

people aged 6-25. Personal development means promoting the physical, 
intellectual, social and spiritual well-being of the individual, helping them 
achieve their full potential. It also provides opportunities to explore their own 
values and personal attitudes. Scouting is about being with friends, as part of 
a team, participating fully in the adventure and opportunities of life. 
 
Maintenance 
Weekly visual inspections backed up by quarterly maintenance / safety 
inspections of play areas and equipment are carried out followed by 
effective maintenance and repair by a dedicated green space operative 
under the guidance of the Play Development Officer, as required. Weekly 
report forms are completed and these are backed up by infrequent reports 
from members of the public. A budget is provided specifically for the 
maintenance and repair of equipment. Equipment is selected that provides 
a balance of play value, challenge and fitness for purpose. It must be 
resilient in the face of vandalism. Maintenance records are kept on a 
database. 
  
The hierarchy of inspections is as follows: 
 

• Weekly Visual Inspections 
• Quarterly Maintenance Repair and Safety Checks 
• Annual Risk Assessment 
• Annual Independent Inspections 

 
Sustainability 
Every Child Matters: Change for Children, places a duty on local authorities 
to ensure that there are opportunities for recreation which includes play for 
children and young people. The Council and the Play Partnership fully 
recognises the value of play to a child’s development and are committed to 
the sustainability of provision for play.  
 
The majority of funding for children’s play is likely in the future to come from 
central and local government funds, though the partnership will work with 
the council and with funding bodies, voluntary and charitable organisations 
to access new resources for developing play services. 
 
Consultation - 2006  
Consultation to date has taken a range of forms and will be ongoing in 
Rotherham for the life of the strategy. Children and young people were at 
the heart of initial consultation and this was backed up with consultation with 
parents and carers. There was also targeted consultation with BME and hard 
to reach groups including young people with anti-social behaviour contracts, 

Page 49



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

families at the Rotherham Women’s Refuge, a hard to reach group. Also 
taken into account are certain relevant results from the Rotherham lifestyle 
survey. 
Much of the consultation was carried out at the Rotherham Show during the 
weekend of 9th and 10th September 2006 where 359 children and young 
people and 96 parents and carers participated. 
The strategy contains a five year vision which indicates where we hope to be 
in five years time in Rotherham. In summary the views of Children, Young 
people and their parent/carers were sought through a number of methods: 

• Examination of existing pieces of work, e.g. the Lifestyle Survey and the 
Visioning exercise 

• Use of the ‘play map’, both at a large event and with specific groups 
of children and young people   

• A ‘snakes and ladders’ game 
• A parent/carer survey questionnaire  

 
Some of the key issues raised were: 

• A need for more play and leisure facilities across the borough 
• Consideration of age appropriate play space 
• Safety issues, including bullying, litter, vandalism etc. 
• Accessibility of play spaces. Consultation with children and young 

people identified that poor accessibility can be a significant barrier to 
accessing play opportunities. Bus patronage locally has declined 
significantly since bus deregulation in 1986, although the rate of 
decline has slowed. To minimise the effects of traffic growth Modal shift 
is required to assist in ensuring that people use public transport instead 
of the car. This will result in an increase in passenger numbers which is 
essential if the bus network is to expand to help improve social 
inclusion and sustainable access. A part of the South Yorkshire Second 
Local Transport Plan’s strategy is therefore to offer better and new 
opportunities for people to access facilities and services by public 
transport. 

• Increasing the involvement of children and young people in decision 
making 

• Improving adult awareness of children and young people’s play 
 
Appendix 3 
 
Map: Areas of Deprivation in Rotherham 
 

Page 50



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

 
 
Appendix 4 
 
References 
Accessible and Inclusive Playspace (2003) John Hicks and Orston Ltd  
Accessing Needs and Opportunities: A Companion Guide to PPG17 (2002) 
ODPM 
At Least Five a Week: Evidence on the impact of physical activity and its 
relationship to health (2004) Chief Medical Officer  

Page 51



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

Best Play (2001) NPFA / Playlink / Children’s Play Council 
Best Play: what play provision should do for children (2000) NPFA, Children’s 
Play Council and PLAYLINK 
Bright Futures- Promoting Children and Young People's Mental Health (1999) 
the Mental Health Foundation. 
Can Play Will Play: disabled children and access to outdoor playgrounds 
(2004)John, A and Wheway, R: NPFA. 
Children and Young People’s Plan and Well Being Strategy2006 – 2009 RMBC 
Children and Young People’s Services Audit of Need (2006) RMBC  
Choosing Playwork – Working with children in out of school settings (2005) 
SkillsActive 
Developing Accessible Play Space (2002) ODPM 
Extended Schools – access to opportunities and services for all (2005)DFES 
Getting Serious About Play: A Review of Children’s Play (2004) Government 
review – Frank Dobson MP DCMS 
Guide to Preparing Play Strategies: Planning inclusive Play spaces and 
opportunities for all London’s children and young people (2005) Mayor of 
London 
Home Zones – reclaiming residential streets Children’s Play Council 
Managing Risk in Play Provision – A position statement (2004) Play Safety 
Forum  
National Playing Fields Association Local Area for Play 
National Playing Fields Association Local Equipped Area for Play 
National Playing Fields Association Neighbourhood Equipped Area for Play 
Planning for Play – A briefing for local authorities  (2004) Children’s Play 
Council 
Planning for Play (2006) Children’s Play Council 
Playground Strategy (A Consultation Document) 
Playing Safe Having Fun – A Play Policy for Rotherham (Draft) 
Preventing Antisocial Behaviour in Public Places (2004) CABE Space  
The Benefits of Play and Playwork (2006) Skills Active 
Time For Play (2006) DCMS 
Young Person’s Lifestyle Survey (2006) RMBC / PCT 
Youth Matters: Next Steps – something to do, somewhere to go, someone to 
talk to (2006) DFES 
 
Appendix 5 
 
Contacts 
For information on aspects of the strategy document contact:  

Page 52



FINAL DRAFT                                 Rotherham Play Strategy 

  Version 8 
 23.01.07 

 

Culture and Leisure     Nick Barnes, Principal Project 
Development Officer, Project Development    Rotherham 
Metropolitan Borough Council Culture &  

Leisure, Rotherham 01709 823669 
nick.barnes@rotherham.gov.uk.  

 
Childcare and Extended Schools Sheree Henchley, RMBC Early Years, 

Childcare and Extended Services Children & 
Young People Services, Rotherham 01709 
822551 sheree.henchley@rotherham.gov.uk   

 
Play Provision and Maintenance Peter Cunningham, Development 

Officer (Play), RMBC Culture & Leisure, 
Rotherham 01709 822458 
peter.cunningham@rotherham.gov.uk 

 
Young People Jonathan Cooper Voice & Influence Officer 

(0-13) RMBC Children and Young Peoples 
Service, Rotherham 01709 334102 
jonathan.cooper@rotherham.gov.uk 

 
Voluntary Consortium David Sargent Chief Executive Officer, 

Chantry YMCA 01709 720040  
david.sargent@chantry.ymca.org.uk 

 
 

Page 53



 
 
1. Meeting: Cabinet Member and Advisers, 

Lifelong Learning and Culture and Leisure 
2. Date: 23rd January 2007 

3. Title: Culture & Leisure Performance Report October – 
December 2006 
 

• Covering Report  
• Appendix 1 Culture & Leisure 2006/07 Key   

Performance Indicators 3rd Quarter Report 
• Appendix 2 – Culture & Leisure 2006 CPA 

Performance Indicators 
• Monitoring against Culture & Leisure 
Risk Register 

 
[Wards affected – All] 
 

4.  Programme Area: Environment and Development Services   

 
 
5.  Summary 
 
5.0  This report sets out:  
 

• 3rd quarter Progress against Culture and Leisure key performance indicators for 
2006/07. 

• Projected Rotherham performance against the 2006 Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment (CPA) Culture Block.   

• Monitoring against the Culture & Leisure Risk Register 
 

 

6.  Recommendations 
 
6.0  That the Performance Report be received 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS  

Agenda Item 7Page 54



Culture & Leisure Performance Report 3rd Quarter 2006/7 
 

 

7.    Proposals and Details 
 
  Service Plan Key Performance Indicators   

 
7.0  Appendix 1 sets out current progress against 2006/07 Culture & Leisure Service Plan 

Key Performance Indicators.  Performance is indicated by a ‘traffic light’ / ‘RAG’ 
system as follows: 

 
Target not achieved / 
High Risk of not being 

Achieved 
On Target but Some 

Identified Risks 
On Target / Achieved  

Red Amber Green 
 
    
7.1 Appendix 1 reports a single performance exception previously reported for the 2nd 

quarter.  The service set a target to achieve 2 Green Flag awards during 2006/07. 
Two sites submitted applications on of which failed. Due to the annual timetable for 
awards concluding in June of each year the authority cannot achieve a further Green 
Flag until 2007/08.  The service currently has an additional 5 applications in 
preparation.    
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) – Progress Against the Culture 
Block   
 

7.2 Appendix 2 sets out current the current position against 2006/07 Culture Block 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) performance indicators. Current or 
expected performance is indicated by a ‘traffic light’ / ‘RAG’ system as follows: 

 
Lower Threshold 

(poor  
performance)  

Above Lower 
Threshold but 
below Upper   

Upper Threshold  Unknown  

Lower Middle  Upper  N/A 
  
 
7.3 CPA Sports Participation PI’s: A key development during the 3rd Quarter was the 

publication of outturn results for the new sports participation and volunteering pi’s. 
These outturns are based on the results of the nationwide 12 month ‘Active People’ 
telephone survey completed by Sport England in partnership with MORI.  ‘Active 
People’ aimed to interview at least 1,000 residents in each local authority area to 
ascertain national and local levels of sports participation and volunteering.   

 
7.4 Rotherham results, set out in Table 2 below, indicate that 18.75% of the resident 

population participate in at least 30 minutes sport or similar active recreation on three 
or more occasions per week whilst 3.3% volunteer in sport and active recreation for at 
least one hour per week. Final CPA scores will be adjusted by the Audit Commission 
for deprivation and confirmed in February. Current projections using the Audit 
Commission’s published methodology for calculating deprivation weightings indicate a 
final outturn of 22.93% for sports participation and 5.27% for volunteering. Based on 
the current indicative performance thresholds published by the Audit Commission in 
August 2006 the projected outturns position Rotherham in the lower threshold for 
participation and middle threshold for volunteering.            

    
 

Page 55



Culture & Leisure Performance Report 3rd Quarter 2006/7 
 

 

 
Table 2. RMBC Sports and Participation CPA Projected Outturns     

CPA PI Description  
CPA 

Indicative  
Lower 

Threshold  

CPA 
Indicative 

Upper 
Threshold  

RMBC  
Actual  
Outturn 

RMBC  
Outturn 
adjusted 

for 
deprivation  

C17 Percentage of adults participating in at 
least 30 minutes moderate intensity sport and 
active recreation on three or more days a 
week  

Below 
25% 28% 18.75% 22.93% 

C18 Percentage of population volunteering in 
sport and active recreation for at least one 
hour per week 

Below 5% 6.5% 3.3% 5.27% 

 
7.5. There is concern current Audit Commission indicative performance thresholds were 

published prior to completion of the survey and subsequently failed to reflect the 
distribution of actual nationwide performance levels published in December 2006. 
Adjusted for deprivation, for example, RMBC’s score for participation is within the top 
50% local authorities but below the CPA lower threshold. Nationally just 3 local 
authorities achieved the CPA upper threshold. Representations have been made and 
the Audit Commission confirms it is examining the appropriateness of current sports 
participation thresholds.    

     
 
7.6. Library Stock Turn & Stock Level: During the third quarter outturn to the CPA 

composite PI C12 Library Stock Turn and Stock Level was adjusted as a result of an 
increase to the mid year estimate of resident population. The outturn for C12a - Books 
available for issue per 1,000 population dropped from the previously reported 1112.28 
to 1108.33. The lower performance threshold for C12 is set marginally below RMBC 
performance at 1108. To achieve the composite PI both C12a and C12b must be 
above lower threshold.  The Council is seeking assurances from the Audit 
Commission that outturn scores will take into account numbers after the decimal point.            
 
Resident Satisfaction Performance Indicators  

 
7.7. The CPA Culture Block PI set includes the following 5 Resident Satisfaction 

Measures:  
 

• Resident satisfaction with sport & leisure facilities 
• Resident satisfaction with libraries 
• Resident satisfaction with museums & galleries 
• Resident satisfaction with theatres & concert halls 
• Resident satisfaction with parks & open spaces 
 

Performance against these PI’s is measured via the most recent triennial BVPI 119 
Resident Satisfaction Survey completed during September / October 2006. Appendix 
2 includes projections based on 2003/04 survey results. There is, however, an 
element of risk and uncertainty attached to all Resident satisfaction measures pending 
publication of the survey results in February 2007.                 

 
 
 

Page 56



Culture & Leisure Performance Report 3rd Quarter 2006/7 
 

 

 
7.8  Final 2006 CPA service block scores will be based on combined inspection and pi 

scores. Calculation of final performance will be heavily weighted toward final pi 
outturns (see table 5, below).   Due to the current uncertainties regarding performance 
thresholds and unpublished survey scores it is not possible even at this late stage to 
predict the final CPA Culture Service Block score for 2006.         

 
Table 5. Calculating 2006 Service Block Scores.  

PI Score Weighting Inspection Weighting Total CPA Score  
62.5 37.5 100% 

 
 
8.   Finance 
 
8.0   There are no financial implications to this report.   
 
 
9.   Risk Register   
 
9.0  Appendix 3 reports Culture & Leisure progress against the corporate risk register. 
  
 
10.  Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
10.0  The report is structured around the Council’s priorities for performance management.     
 
 
11.  Background Papers and Consultation 
 

• 2006/07 Culture & Leisure Service Plan  
• Best Value Performance Plan 2006/07 
• Audit Commission CPA 2006 Guidance 

 
 
Officer Contact: John Finnen, Service Development Officer  
Tel.  01709 334181 E mail: john.finnen@rotherham.gov.uk 

Page 57



Appendix 1 Culture and Leisure Service Performance Report 3rd Quarter 2006/07 – Quarterly Performance Indicators                     
 

 
Key 

Below 
Target / 

Not 
Achieved 

R 
On Target but current 
level of performance 
is causing concern 

A On Target / 
Achieved G 

Not 
applicable 
(e.g. no 

target set) 
N/A 

 

Best Value Performance Indicators 
 

2006/07 Performance Indicator  Linked 
priorities  

Culture & 
Leisure 
Service  

05/06 
outturn 
  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 

06/07 
Target 

R/A/G Comments  

BVPI  170 a The number of visits to/usage’s of 
museums per 1000 population 

Rotherham 
Alive  
 

Museums 551 154.4 178.8 104.5 450 G Current performance is on target for 2006/07 

  
BVPI 170 b Number of those visits that were in 
person per 1,000 population  
 

Rotherham 
Alive  
 

Museums 
500 147.5 159.8 89.5 425 G Current performance is on target for 2006/07 

BVPI 170c The number of pupils visiting 
museums and galleries in organised school trips 
 

Rotherham 
Learning Museums 1928 650 492 471 2,000 G Current performance is on target  for 2006/07   

BVPI 118 Library User Satisfaction     
a) Found book or information wanted  N/A 89% (79%) 85% 
b) Reserved book or information wanted  N/A 91% (75.6%) 80% 
c) Were satisfied with the outcome 

Rotherham 
Excellent 

Libraries  
N/A 94% (93.9%) 94% 

 G 

The triennial CIPFA Public Library User Survey 
(PLUS) was completed during September / 
October.  
06/07 results indicate significant improvement over 
03/04 with all three elements indicating increased   
user satisfaction.  03/04 scores are presented in 
parentheses. 
Part C) Narrowly missed a local stretch target of 
95% but met the national target of 94%.  

BVPI 119 - The % of residents Satisfied with 
Cultural Services   

Rotherham 
Proud 
CPA 

All Culture 
& Leisure  N/A N/A N/A N/A 

a) Sport & Leisure N/A N/A 54% N/A 
b) Libraries N/A N/A 70% N/A 
c) Museums N/A N/A 50% N/A 
d) Arts N/A N/A 47% N/A 
e) Green Spaces N/A N/A 70% N/A 

The triennial resident satisfaction survey was a 
completed during September.  Outturn will be 
available during February. Resident satisfaction 
outturns will influence CPA scores for the Culture 
Block.   

P
a
g
e
 5

8



Appendix 1 Culture and Leisure Service Performance Report 3rd Quarter 2006/07- Quarterly Performance Indicators                      

 
Key 

Below 
Target / 

Not 
Achieved 

R 
On Target but current 
level of performance 
is causing concern 

A On Target / 
Achieved G 

Not applicable 
(e.g. no target 

set) 
N/A 

 

2006/07 Performance Indicator  Linked 
priorities  

Culture & 
Leisure 
Service  

05/06 
outturn 
  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 

06/07 
Target 

R/A/G Comments  

BVPI 220 Compliance against Public Library 
Standards: Rotherham 

Excellent  
CPA Libraries  3 N/A 4 A 

Current projections indicate that Council 
performance against BV 220 will not move above 3 
for 06/07. The final outturns cannot, however, be 
fully confirmed till after March 2007.  A programme 
of new Library facilities to be delivered in the 
coming years will improve future performance 
against Library standards.        

 
Key Local Performance Indicators  

 
2006/07 Performance Indicator  Linked 

priorities  
Culture & 
Leisure 
Service  

05/06 
outturn 1st Qtr 

 
2nd Qtr  3rd Qtr  

06/07 
Target 

R/A/G Comments  

Libraries  4,010 2,737 1,824 1,845 6,500 G 
Museums  666 155 224 224 700 G 
Theatre & Arts 12,980 3,370 1,398 2,907 13,000 G 
Community 
Arts 

3,335 529 788 504 3,500 G 
Archives 399 216 38 64 425 G 
Sports 
Development  

1,083 232 58 7 1,090 G 
Green Spaces 265 239 833 392 

 
See 
CSPI 
01b 
below 

G 

CSPI 01 a  
The number of adults taking part in Cultural 
Services activities that have a specific objective of 
learning or skills development 

 

Rotherham 
Learning 

Sport & 
Leisure 
Facilities 

26,287 7,077 6,762 7,234 26,812 G 

All serves are on target to meet this PI.  

 

P
a

g
e
 5

9



Appendix 1 Culture and Leisure Service Performance Report 3rd Quarter 2006/07- Quarterly Performance Indicators                      

 
Key 

Below 
Target / 

Not 
Achieved 

R 
On Target but current 
level of performance 
is causing concern 

A On Target / 
Achieved G 

Not applicable 
(e.g. no target 

set) 
N/A 

 

2006/07 
 

06/07 
Target 

Performance Indicator  Linked 
priorities  

Culture & 
Leisure 
Service  

05/06 
outturn 

1st Qtr 
 

2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr   

R/A/G Comments  

Libraries  33,227 11,315 8,333 8,277 33,300 G 
Museums  6,054 1,837 1,170 1,512 6,250 G 
Theatres and 
Arts  13,373 2,677 2,385 4,679 13,500 G 
Community 
Arts 24, 808 5,253 2,311 2,835 25,000 G 
Archives 0 0 0 31 50 G 
Sports 
Development  2,274 895 1,467 198 2,280 G 
Green Spaces 

4,165 2,137 2,081 1,209 
4,695 
(CSPI 
a&b) 

G 

CSPI 01 b The number of young people (up to 
16 years old) taking part in Cultural Services 
activities that have a specific objective of 
learning or skills development. 

Rotherham 
Learning 

Sport & 
Leisure 
Facilities   

282,845 77,873 62,059 53.306 288,501 G 

 All services are on target to meet this PI.  
 

CSPI 27 The number of slips, trips and falls 
with target of 10% reduction by 2008 

Rotherham 
Safe  

All Culture & 
Leisure 

114 42 18 21 163 
(by 2008) 

G 

On target  
• The target for 2008 has been achieved and 

exceeded.  
• There were 182 slips, trips and falls in 2004/05. the 

2005/06 outturn of 114 represents a decrease of 
approximately 37% across Culture and Leisure 

CSPI 28 The number of manual handling 
injuries to staff with 20% reduction by 2008 
 

Rotherham 
Safe 

All Culture & 
Leisure 

14 0 0 0 12 (by 
2008) G 

Total numbers of incidents remain have been very low, 
affecting about 3% of Culture & Leisure Staff during 
2005/06 and none during 2006/07 to date. 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

0



Appendix 1 Culture and Leisure Service Performance Report 3rd Quarter 2006/07- Quarterly Performance Indicators                      

 
Key 

Below 
Target / 

Not 
Achieved 

R 
On Target but current 
level of performance 
is causing concern 

A On Target / 
Achieved G 

Not applicable 
(e.g. no target 

set) 
N/A 

 

2006/07 
 

Performance Indicator  Linked 
priorities  

Culture & 
Leisure 
Service  

05/06 
outturn 

1st Qtr 
 

2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr  

06/07 Target R/A/G Comments  

CSPI 36 Number of visits to Culture & 
Leisure Services 
 
 
 

Rotherham 
Alive 

All Culture 
& Leisure   

2,432,650 369,924 693,419 470,500 2,500,000 
(provisional) 

N/A Quarterly outturns of Cultural visit are 
calculated   from total or estimated visits to 
Libraries, Museums, Theatres and 
Community Arts events, Sports events and 
facilities and parks and open spaces.      
The overall provisional target of 2,500,000 is 
based on actual recorded and reported visits 
and usages of cultural services during 
2005/06. Culture & Leisure is currently 
reviewing methods for estimating casual 
visits to cultural services, in particular Green 
Spaces. Revised targets and estimates will 
be reported later in the year.         

CSPI 43 Internet Access Points in borough 
cultural facilities 

Rotherham 
Learning 

Libraries & 
Archives 

 

• Number of access points 173 173 173 157 173 A 

• Usage numbers (no. of bookings) 146,685 41,205 51,210 40,262 149,000 G 

The number of internet access points is 
reduced following the closure of two branch 
libraries.  The service has, however, met 
national performance indicators for internet 
access points per 1,000 population.     

Theatres & 
Arts   136,997 18,662 12,057 35,280 143,000 G 

This PI is on target to be achieved. Although 
performance appears to be poor matched 
against the current target it must be noted 
that the peak season for visits to Theatres is 
during the 3rd and 4th quarters of the 
performance year.     

CSPI 44 The number of people who 
participate in or attend an arts activity   

Rotherham 
Alive 

Community 
Arts  34,874 5,782 43,294 3339 35,000 G This PI is on target to be achieved. 

 
2006/07 

 
Performance Indicator  Linked 

priorities  
Culture & 
Leisure 
Service  

05/06 
outturn 

1st Qtr 
 

2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr  

06/07 Target R/A/G Comments  

P
a

g
e
 6

1



Appendix 1 Culture and Leisure Service Performance Report 3rd Quarter 2006/07- Quarterly Performance Indicators                      

 
Key 

Below 
Target / 

Not 
Achieved 

R 
On Target but current 
level of performance 
is causing concern 

A On Target / 
Achieved G 

Not applicable 
(e.g. no target 

set) 
N/A 

 

2006/07 
 

Performance Indicator  Linked 
priorities  

Culture & 
Leisure 
Service  

05/06 
outturn 

1st Qtr 
 

2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr  

06/07 Target R/A/G Comments  

SPI 45 Swimming Pools & sports centres: 
The number of swims and other visits per 
1,000 population 

Rotherham 
Alive Sports & 

Leisure 
Facilities  

3402 950 851 683 3452 A 

Due to closure of the Brampton and 
Rawmarsh facilities from September 2006 
there is some risk that the 06/07 target will be 
missed. It must be noted, however, that:  

• 1st and 2nd quarter performance 
improved in comparison with the 
same period last year – from 1,659 
to 1,801 

• 4th qtr usage was the highest for 
2005/06.  If this pattern is repeated 
for 06/07 the risk will be 
considerably reduced.     

CSPI 47 Number of Green Space sites with 
Green Flag award 

Rotherham 
Sustainable 
Rotherham 
Excellent 

Green 
Spaces  

0 1 2 R 
Thrybergh Country Park achieved Green Flag 
in June 2006.  
Rother Valley Country Park failed in its 
application.  
There are, however, currently an additional 5 
applications in preparation.    

CSPI 41 Total Visits using Rother Card 
(Disadvantaged Groups) 

Rotherham 
Fair 

All Culture 
& Leisure 

94,520 26,644 20,361 22,386 95,000 
N/A 

An overall % target will be established for 
Culture & leisure based on overall usage 
figures identified via the methodology under 
development for estimating total visits (see 
CSPI 36 above).      

 

P
a
g
e
 6

2



Appendix 2:  Culture and Leisure Service Performance Report 3rd Quarter 2006/07:  
Actual & Projected Performance against Culture & Leisure & CPA Culture Block PI’s 2006 

 

 

Performance Measure Lower Threshold Upper Threshold 05/06 RMBC 
Performance  

(Upper, Middle, 
Lower) 

C1 Percentage of total length of footpaths and other rights of way that were easy 
to use by members of the public 50% 90% 93.6% Upper 
C2 Public Library Service Standards on access - PLSS 1,2 & 6 More than one of 

C2a – C2c at or 
below lower 
threshold 

All of C2a – 
C2c above 
lower  
threshold and 
at least one 
meeting upper 
threshold 

Composite PI. See C2a 
– C2c 

Middle  

C2a Proportion of households living within a specified distance of a static library 5 percentage points 
below the standard  N/A 94% (6% below standard) Lower 

C2b Aggregate scheduled opening hours per 1,000 population for all libraries 
  

20  percentage points 
below the standard 
(standard is 128 hours) 

Meets or exceeds 
the standard  
(standard is 128 
hours) 

144.5 
(10% above standard Upper 

C2c Number of library visits per 1,000 population 30 percentage points 
below the standard   

Meets or exceeds 
the standard  

5,152 
(approx. 86% of the standard 
of 6,000) Middle  

C3 Public library service standards on ICT provision - PLSS 3 & 4 Both at or below 
lower threshold 
OR C3a at or below 
lower threshold  
And C3b below the 
upper threshold.   

C3a meets the 
standard   
AND 
C3b meets the 
upper 
threshold. 

Composite PI. See C3a 
– C3b 

Upper 

C3a % of static libraries providing access to electronic  information resources connected to the 
internet 

Does not meet the 
standard  100% 100% Upper 

C3b Total number of electronic workstations available to users per 10,000 population 25 percentage points 
below the standard  Meets or exceeds 

the standard.  
7 

(16.6% above standard of 6)  Upper 

C4 Active borrowers as a percentage of population 
 20.40% 27.30% 16% Lower 

P
a
g
e
 6

3



Appendix 2:  Culture & Leisure & CPA Culture Block PI’s 2006 
 

 

Performance Measure Lower Threshold Upper Threshold 05/06 RMBC 
Performance  

(Upper, Middle, 
Lower) 

C5 Resident satisfaction sport / leisure facilities 
 

49% 60% *47% 
(projection) Middle 

C6 Resident satisfaction libraries 63% 72% *61% 
(projection) 

Middle 
 

C7 Resident satisfaction museums/galleries 31% 50% *37% 
(projection) Middle  

C8 Resident satisfaction theatres/concert halls 36% 56% *45% 
(projection) Middle  

C9 Resident satisfaction parks/open spaces 66% 77% *70% 
(projection) Middle 

*Note: Projected outturns for C5 – C9 are based on User Satisfaction (BVPI 119) survey returns for 2003/04.   
There is considerable risk attached to C5 – C9 as the 2006 outturn will must be calculated from the 06/07 BVPI 119 Survey.  
Confidence intervals will be applied. E.g. where a score is within a specified range not falling below the lower threshold performance will meet the PI. Final confidence intervals cannot be calculated till after a 
survey is completed. The methodology for calculating confidence intervals is based on the number of completed returns as a % of numbers issued etc.  
 
C11 Public library service standards on stock (PLSS5, 9 and 10) More than one at or 

below the lower 
individual threshold 

All above lower 
individual 
threshold and 
at least one 
meets upper 
individual 
threshold 

Composite PI. See c11 
a – C11c  

Upper 

C11a Requests supply time 10 percentage points 
below the standard for 
any three components 
(standard is 50% 7 days, 
70% 15 days, 85% 30 
days) 

Meets or exceeds 
the standard  for all  
three components 

58.3% 7 days, 77.2% 15 days,  
91% 30 days 

Upper 

C11b Annual items added through purchase per 1,000 population 15 percentage points 
below the standard  

Meets or exceeds 
the standard  

219 
(standard is 216) 

Upper 
C11c Time taken to replenish the lending stock on open access of available on loan 30 percentage points 

above the standard 
(Higher values denote 
poorer performance) 

Meets or exceeds 
the standard 

5.4 years 
 ( 19%  standard of 6.7 years) Upper  

P
a

g
e
 6

4



Appendix 2:  Culture & Leisure & CPA Culture Block PI’s 2006 
 

 

Performance Measure Lower Threshold Upper Threshold 05/06 RMBC 
Performance  

(Upper, Middle, 
Lower) 

C12 Stock Turn and Stock level Both at or below 
the  lower individual 
threshold  
OR 
One at or below 
lower individual 
threshold the other 
below the upper 
threshold  

Both above 
lower individual 
threshold and 
at least one 
meets upper 
individual 
threshold 

Composite PI. See c12a 
– C12b 

Middle  

C12a Stock Turn - book issues / books available for loan 5.2 6.7 5.56 Middle 
C12b Stock level – books available for issue per 1,000 population 1108 1532 1108.33 Middle 

(subject to 
confirmation) 

C13 Cost per visit (libraries) £3.37 £2.46 £3.28 Middle 
C14 Public library service standards on satisfaction – assessment of users 16 
and over of their library service   
(New) 

20 percentage 
points below the 
standard 

7 percentage 
points below 
the standard 

94% Upper  
C15 Museums accreditation – where applicable  
 

Museums not 
accredited 

Museums 
accredited at 
level 2 

Level 2 
 Upper 

C16 Percentage of 5 – 16 year olds in school sports partnerships engaged in two 
hours a week minimum on high quality PE and school sport within and beyond 
the curriculum 
 

Below 75 percent 
of pupils in school 
sports partnerships 

80 percent of 
pupils in school 

sports 
partnerships 

77% Middle 

C17 Percentage of adults participating in at least 30 minutes moderate intensity 
sport and active recreation on three or more days a week (18.7% -22.93%) Below 25% 28% 

18.75 
(22.93 with deprivation 

adjustment) 
Lower  

C18 Percentage of population volunteering in sport and active recreation for at 
least one hour per week (3.3% - 5.27%) Below 5% 6.5% 

3.3% 
(5.27% with deprivation 

adjustment) 
Middle 

 

P
a
g
e
 6

5



Appendix 2:  Culture & Leisure & CPA Culture Block PI’s 2006 
 

 

C19 Percentage of population that are within 20 minutes travel time (urban areas 
– by walk; rural areas – by car) of a range of three different sports facility types, 
of which one has achieved a specified quality assured standard        

30% 50% 1.92% Lower 

 

P
a

g
e
 6

6



 

 
Appendix 3 

 
 
 

Monitoring against Culture & Leisure 
Risk Register 

 

Page 67



 

P
a
g
e
 6

8



 

P
a
g
e
 6

9



 

P
a

g
e
 7

0



 

P
a
g
e
 7

1



Agenda Item 8Page 72
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of previous meeting held on 9th January, 2007
	6 Rotherham Play Strategy 2007-2012
	230107 (DRAFT) PLAY STRATEGY v8.doc(Second)

	7 Culture & Leisure Performance Report October-December, 2006
	230107 Appendix A to Culture & Leisure Perf Report
	230107 Appendix B to Culture & Leisure Perf Report
	230107 Appendix C to Culture & Leisure Perf Report
	230107 Appendix D to Culture and Leisure Perf Report
	230107 Appendix E to Culture and Leisure Perf Report

	8 Herringthorpe Playing Fields - Changing Pavilion

